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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B8 7 A B e

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 160 to 308, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

FSETEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$20,626,625,000, accounting
for approximately 89% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2020 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$452,999,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BB EMEREEERBEREFFTER  REAEETAFER
FMEMREER  WFIFEL B E R -

EEENEEMEACPEEUREBNTE BmE TEREE
YIE - ThiR A F{E B #20,626,625,0007CHER 0 1 EEER-Z
—EFE+ A=+ —HHBEELNSI%  HEWEATEEEF
RE B 452,000,000t ERE ZEZA L FENGEEa R EMEME
IWARAER(RERE M REM F17)

EPBE A RAT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
o A B i

S ETEIE
MRBAFEHERBERMANEXAE R RY
APHEEEMBREANETRAEENER -
EUETHEERMBABREAVBRER LI
HHEKRERERE - RATSHELFTHEHR
BEBENER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEESPEERAREFETENSTX

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
FHEETBEEGR

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.
EEENREMENREB IS ERZERMERM(HERM)EST
HEE - AR TFEREXG S o WA S B 55w aR M a5 A7 AT
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSR (@)

o Challenging the reasonableness and
appropriateness of valuation models applied
based on available market information and
our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are consistent
with those used in prior year; and

° Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key inputs used in the
valuations, on a sample basis, based on
evidence of comparable market
transactions, existing tenancy profiles and
other publicly available information of the
property industry.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
FHREFEEGE

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

AR EMEZTRIEEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$940,144,000 as at 31 December 2020. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRYV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to prevailing market data on most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation reports
available from independent qualified professional valuers, which
takes into account the prevailing real estate market conditions.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion of
the PFS and costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS
was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHPREFABENSZTENSX(E)

QOur procedures in relation to the assessment of
the NRV of the PFS included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management or independent qualified
professional valuers, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the
market prices achieved in the same projects
or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the PFS
estimated by the management, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the Group’s
development budget and the actual
development cost of similar properties
recently completed by the Group and by
checking the actual cost incurred to date to
construction contracts and other relevant
documents.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chau Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —ZE —ZFF+—HA=+—HIFF/Z

2020 2019
i el 33 —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks BETT BT
Revenue I =
Revenue from goods and services B oo M AR 5 W AR 211,806 201,567
Rental income el A 478,484 532,305
Total revenue el g 6 690,290 733,872
Cost of sales iz RN (106,784) (128,918)
Gross profit E 7 583,506 604,954
Other income, gains and losses Equg A Uz R EE 7 78,501 53,387
Selling expenses HEBH (10,298) (6,272)
Administrative expenses THEA (154,576) (188,427)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEHRB AR 2 W= 38 7,778 —
Net fair value loss on investment HEWMELNFE
properties E1EIFE 17 (452,999) (131,243)
Impairment loss on loan receivables FE W E FOR B & 18 38(a) (142,423) —
Finance costs A& P AN 9 (36,885) (60,035)
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense & Ff 18 %% 5 5% Al
(E518), % 7 10 (127,396) 272,364
Income tax expense BT 1S ¢ F 2 13 (57,946) (54,689)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBE), iR (185,342) 217,675
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A AR A R At 2 Tl W A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

.,,unHllH”””W

2020 2019
—EC-TE —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ks BETR BT

Other comprehensive income/ Hih2ml N (FAX):

(expense), net of tax B IEE 14
Item that will not be reclassified to KUTIEA T2 EH 745

profit or loss: Bz

Deficit on revaluation of buildings, EFEMHEE -

net of deferred tax Bk IR RE F I8 18 (110) (578)

Itern that may be reclassified KUTIHAAZERBEED 74

subsequently to profit or loss: Bz -

Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of & FINETE ~

foreign operations BE 5 W as (5 48) 23,559 (11,118)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) MW Eth 2 EW A~

for the year, net of tax (B Mk FIER 23,449 (11,696)
Total comprehensive FEREZEGEIR) WA

(expense)/income for the year (161,893) 205,979
(Loss)/profit for the year FEIESE R (B518), it Fl -

attributable to:

Owners of the Company AKRBEEA (185,807) 217,782

Non-controlling interests RS 465 (107)

(185,342) 217,675
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SR AR AR R At 2 i A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

2020 2019
b s 32 —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BETR BT
Total comprehensive EEERE2TE (X)),
(expense)/income for the year KA
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRREAA (163,959) 206,373
Non-controlling interests FEE P = 2,066 (394)
(161,893) 205,979
(Loss)/earnings per share for EATHAAELER
(loss)/profit attributable to (B518) "#@F 2z
owners of the Company for the Sk (EE), &R
year 16
Basic BN HK$ 7 %5 (0.66) 7T HK$ % #0.777T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ]

fr T B IR DL %

As at 31 December 2020 R—E_—ZF+—H=4+—H

2020 2019
—E-FTEF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iokza HBETIT ST T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREBE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment properties HEMHE 17 20,626,625 21,185,655
Property, plant and equipment W - WENE 18 151,450 153,712
Deposits paid for acquisition of WiEME 2B NET®
properties 9,251 9,351
Loan receivables W E X 20 19,761 26,890
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 20,807,087 21,375,608
Current assets RBEE
Properties for sale GR=L/ES 19 940,144 1,025,080
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E Aty e U FR I8 20 171,168 95,583
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEFAEZE 21
profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (MR FEFAERZDZ
WBEE 63,008 99,255
Restricted bank deposits Z R AR 77K 22 64,082 43,879
Short-term bank deposits HHIR T ER 22 425,668 250,000
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMREEEY 22 601,806 307,211
2,265,876 1,821,008
Assets classified as held for sale NEEGEZEE 37 63,787 420,000
Total current assets WRENE E 2,329,663 2,241,008
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables BN E b B FRIE 23 619,689 709,154
Contract liabilities AHBE 24 27,682 60,086
Lease liabilities HEBE 25 9,432 4,473
Borrowings BE 26 180,605 213,005
Provision for income tax FTiS R 18 127,042 165,647
Total current liabilities “REAaR 964,450 1,152,365
Net current assets BRBEE 1,365,213 1,088,643
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B W BSIR L %
As at 31 December 2020 R - FE - FFf+ - H=+—H
2020 2019
—E-FEF —ZT-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K aF BT T BT T
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERBRBEE 22,172,300 22,464,251
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings BE 26 1,671,393 1,731,058
Lease liabilities HEAEG 25 7,981 6,798
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBAE 27 105,945 120,859
Total non-current liabilities WIERBEE 1,785,319 1,858,715
Net assets FEE 20,386,981 20,605,536
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the ERXA T #H A
Company FE1EHE =
Share capital fi& 7 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves @& 29 20,341,923 20,562,544
20,370,254 20,590,875
Non-controlling interests FEIERRER 35 16,727 14,661
Total equity HEREE 20,386,981 20,605,536

The consolidated financial statements on pages 160 to 308 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 March
2021 and are signed on behalf by:

F1B0EBAEZ AN BREAN_E_—F=ZA_THHEEFTERENNE  YHUTESFRRES:

Foo Kam Chu Grace Chan Wai Ling
HEk REZF
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS "”””””””HHH

GaBleaf

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —ZE —ZFF+—HA=+—HIFF/Z

2020 2019
k- Jat- -1 3 —ZT-hEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b EBETR BT T
Operating activities MEER
(Loss)/Profit before income tax expense BRETEHASA(ER), & (127,396) 272,364
Adjustments for: BT & B EH 382 -
Interest income from financial assets at BATFEFABZ B
FVTPL BEZNBWEA (4,602) (4,581)
Interest income from loan receivables JE U & SRF B A (19,389) (1,066)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME MERREZERE
equipment 3 —
Revaluation deficit on property, plant and mE . MENRESGER
equipment 388 —
Other interest income H b F S WA (17,719) (22,124)
Interest expenses on borrowings BEF W 36,417 57,201
Interest expenses on others HpFl e - 2,525
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMEZH 468 309
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEENE 6,025 3,392
Depreciation of other property, Hibz WMERRERTE
plant and equipment 11,506 5,269
Impairment loss on loan receivables JEWEFUREEE 142,423 —
(Reversal of) impairment loss on trade ZSREBFBERERSE
receivables, net (#m@) F5E (501) 5,757
Net fair value loss on investment properties &Y ¥ N FEEIEFE 17 452,999 131,243
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR 2z 38 (7,778) —
Operating profit before working HBESBEER LR ET
capital changes 472,844 450,289
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5Kk EAMmEKKIFCEM
receivables Veiea (73,838) 39,718
Decrease/(increase) in properties for sale HFEMERL LM 98,224 (79,014)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank SERFIRITEREEM R
deposits (20,203) 30,689
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BHREMBEARECRD),
other payables 3 (68,744) 86,551
Decrease in contract liabilities AHBERD (32,404) (94,383)
Net cash generated from operations XBEMBHREFE 375,879 433 850
Income tax paid ERER (111,214) (98,982)
Net cash generated from operating activities &% 2 B85 2 F 58 264,665 334,868
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BOBSREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

2020 2019
et 33 —T-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
b EETRT BT T
Investing activities BEEH
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BEZRATEFAEBRZ
WBEE (244,935) (224,079)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets HERAFEFABIEZ
at FVTPL B EEMSRIA 285,842 215,138
Placement of short-term bank deposits FREBRTER (425,668) (451,000)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits REVE HR 1T 250,000 776,000
Repayment from loan receivables FE U B KB K 38,343 6,000
Additions to property, plant and equipment R E C ME KR &R E (3,674) (6,175)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BENMEE
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3018 2 —
Deposits paid for acquisitions of properties WY % 2 BN 5] & 100 (70)
Payment to acquire and construct Wi R R EME 2R
investment properties (2,356) (823,390)
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEWNBRARZEERA
subsidiaries F R 38 279,514 —
Interest received from financial assets at BAFEFAEZ 2TB
FVTPL BEZEHEAE 4,602 4,581
Interest received from loan receivables W ERE WF B 1,078 1,066
Other interest received H A2 WA R 17,719 22,124
Deposits received on disposal of HEMBAR 2B WIES
subsidiaries 9,568 2,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing R & ZBAr18 ~(FrH) B2 F58
activities 210,135 (476,805)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BABSREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

.,,unHllH”””W

2020 2019
k- Jat- -1 3 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EBETR BT
Financing activities A& EE
Repayments of bank loans BEBITER (692,065) (1,118,725)
Bank loans raised EERITERN 600,000 1,500,000
Interest paid on borrowings BEREERE (36,417) (57,201
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENHEERET A (468) (309)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (5,309) (2,409)
Final and special dividends paid BT AR E R B (56,662) (56,662)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing &% &) (AT /H) B8 #E &
activities JHEE (190,921) 264,694
Increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RIEE&ZEHE M 283,879 122,757
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 R—B—HBzZzHRER
January He%EY 307,211 186,238
Effect of foreign exchange rate Exgenue, 8
changes, net 10,716 (1,784)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 R+=ZHA=Z+—B2Hs& xR
December Ha%EYD 601,806 307,211
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Ol R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —L-—FF1+—H=+—HIFFZF

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATEANEILER

Capital
Share Share redemption

capital premium reserve
AAREE

% B% 3 it 8 i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT EETRT EBETRT

As at 1 January 2020 R-BE-FE—HA—H 28,331 690,811 295
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(EEE), @R - - -
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hip 2@ N (FAX)
[tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LATEESTEEH»EER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETCHIEBE
net of deferred tax (note 14) (B 5E14) - - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to UTIEEERBAGEEFTDED B
profit or loss:
Exchange gain on translation of foreign operations BREFINERE B R - - -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRE2ZTHER) WA
for the year - - -
Proposed final dividends for 2020 (note 15(a)) BT TERERE
(P 5£15(0)) — = =
Final dividend paid for 2019 (note 15(b)) ENZZE-NAFRERE
(Pt 5£15(0)) - = =
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_FF+=-A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
R Fob RS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

.,,.HHHHHHHHH

AATHEANEILER
Asset Proposed Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
EEEMG Bk

& RE R BE 55 i 4 %5 Bl {5 18 k2 fmEt FEERER HmEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
110 19,852,538 (39,720) 1,848 56,662 20,590,875 14,661 20,605,536
- (185,807) - - - (185,807) 465 (185,342)
(110) - - - - (110) - (110)

- - 21,958 - - 21,958 1,601 23,559
(110) (185,807) 21,958 - - (163,959) 2,066 (161,893)

- (56,662) - - 56,662 - - -
- - - - (56,662) (56,662) - (56,662)

- 19,610,069 (17,762) 1,848 56,662 20,370,254 16,727 20,386,981
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BROTREdEE E R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

RATHEE N EEER
Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
EARE D
[N i 7 % 8 &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BETT BETT BETT

As at 1 January 2019 R-ZE—-H&E—H—H 28,331 690,811 295
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEF(EEE) - — —
Other comprehensive expense H2mEX
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LTHAB T TEENM A ER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETCHIEBE

net of deferred tax (note 14) (M 5E14) — - -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to LTIEEEZgeEs 2 ERER:

profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations BREFHNEBCEREE - — —
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRE2THER) WA

for the year — — _

Proposed final dividends for 2019 (note 15(a)) BRERIT-NFREARE

(M 5£15(2)) — — —
Final dividend paid for 2018 (note 15(b)) BN -N\FREAKS

(Hff 5£15(0)) — — —

As at 31 December 2019 R-FE—-AE+=-RA=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GO B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners

wl!!l”””””m

of the Company
RRBHEEANEHER
Asset Proposed Non-

revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity

BEE EEANE
& R 8 % A bE 5 f# 5 Bl % 5\ Foby FE R IR 2 TS AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT BT BT T BT T BT T BT T
688 19,691,418 (28,889) 1,848 56,662 20,441,164 15,055 20,456,219
- 217,782 - - - 217,782 (107) 217,675
(578) — — — — (578) — (578)
- - (10,831) - - (10,831) (287) (11,118)
(578) 217,782 (10,831) — — 206,373 (394) 205,979
— (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)
110 19,852,538 (39,720) 1,848 56,662 20,590,875 14,661 20,605,536
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &% —ZE —ZFF+—HA=+—HIFF/Z

General Information

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, the Chairman
of the board of Directors, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

Application of Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
2.1 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

—iREH
SHBEEARAG(ARR)ARBRE
AR EBERZER AR - AQAE ]
¥ % R #b 1k A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° 7482 &]
B EEBHARSEERAE ([BRFT])
Ee

ARRETBEXEBRRERR  HBAR
ZEBEBHNEAMBEHRRMEIS - K
REAREMBAR(AKEENDEZLEY
XER PEHERRERHEBTEERS

ARAEE(EE)RARAR 2 BEE
b B— AR (RER) - AR
EES T MO KL T RAFKRKE (B
ARRRTEERBEME) BHERZE
A

FE 818 5] & BB 5 iR &5 8

((EFEMFEREERD)

21 MEFERFIEZRZEEITETE
Bt %5 8 &5 ZE A
RAFE  AEBEREGE W HEHRE
FEERERAE T T4 —H—H%
2 1& Fth 2 FF 12 B R o4 ) A S A Ak
BB BT IR E R B SRR EIEET R
Ty EBEHAE (HEE A
g)EMOLIET B BB RELE
Al :

FRGRENFIRE EBZER
FA G ERE8H
Z1EET

BB I S 2R
E3KZEFT

BB RELER A REAE
FO - BEAGHE  HEF
A 395k & &

B 75 S RN B TR
Z1E5]

Xz EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

21 Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on
the Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with
other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

FEREEITEEMBREEL
((EEMBREERDER)

21

RAEFEERBERZEBTEE
Bt 78R & A (F|)

BRTLE SN - WAFE R RS EE
B 5 3 E& BRI B2 MRy 15 5T B AR
ERT BB E 2R B A K B AEF
ERBEFENMBHRRERRER,/
IZERAVBERRMBNBES
BAUVBELAEATE -

BEREEEERE1AREEE
FRBSHZIET (EEZEHE) B
P

AEBRAFEERERBLGTE
AIF1E R B E G EAFeR 2
Fle RBERAAHEREHR—ETE
- FAMBDEE - R BIEM
EEH neEtAHAYEREE
RFERRERMBENZBRAPER
REBRARERZEWHRKRAIE
ZRE  ZEFEEMABEAN] %F
ERABRBTEEERBURRE R
HELRE AR EEBHERRNE
BARBENHEELMER —HE

RAFEEERBZEFERT AL RA M
WRA BEREAZE -

.uunHHH””w
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FEREETEEM R EEL
(T& &M &R &2 D&

2.2 EnRMHEEKREZNMIET REE
A ERNBREER
ALY EE TR AT ERMAE R
REMOFET REET B BB R

2. Application of Amendments to Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2 New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective: HAER
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related BB I & £ RBARE
Amendments' F17% EELH)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions* BB I & ER “Z-NBRRER
F1635 2 57 RENASER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework? BB I & ER BafiER 2 Ri2
FIRZERT

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BB I & ER MEREENE

39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and — Phase 29 % BAEHEN - FER

HKFRS 16

H30% - BRMH SR
HERETE - FAY
BREERFSER

BAMEREER
F1635 2 53]
Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an BB I & E8 REEREBE AR
HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint FIOHREBEE RENRIZHZEE
Venture® Bl 283% 2 (53] HEHRAS
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as Current or Non- BAGER BEABEARBDAER
current and related amendments to Hong ESLA T HREHEEARES
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)' 55 M{E ] (2020%)"
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds HE G EN nE BERSE -
before Intended Use? F165 2157 BERRRZ
FTi5 32
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfling a EASHEANZE  BERMSH - BTN
Contract? 2B LB
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018- BERMBREEAER] BAPHREER
2020° 2018F £2020% 2

ERyE
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Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

2.2

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

The Directors anticipate that the application of all new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

3. Basis of Preparation

3.1

3.2

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 160 to
308 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, investment properties and
buildings which are measured at fair values or revalued
amounts at the end of each reporting period as set out in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

FEREIETEEMBREEL

(& &M REE DG

2.2

5 3 M ) R A 3 B4 i 5T R AR 4

AIEEMBRERER(E)

T ORCE-=F—A-BRZEMKZ
F [ A 4 2

: ROToF-A-ARZEMBZ
R EIR K

P REEBERZRBIAN F I A
3

¢ RCToTFAA-ARZEMBZ
R

S RSB —F-R-BRZEMEAN
F [ A 4 2

EEEY BRMEHIREETE
B IRE A& EE R KR
REVBRREKNEATE -

3. REEHE

3.1

3.2

EHREH
F160E308H Z &7 A MG MK TIiR I
BEGHEAERM BB BHRE
EAMRE - SRR MBHKM
5 WAHENAEENEYETE
RAPELEVRE - AIEER RS
BRI REVBRREBERE
EERHPIERAREZ LT AR
TEMRAUMDEEERAREPIFRE
BB -

a£-F

RAVBRRTDIEAE LKL R
B ERETNEABRRMAEN R
SMARE AT EXRELCBITEZLSE
THHETR REVERETRIN -

FE 2 XA — ARG i B2 R PR
RTREZATFER/EE-
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3.

Basis of Preparation (Continued)
3.2 Basis of Measurement (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16”), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”
(“HKFRS 13”) is an exit price regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the
results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

3. BREXER)

3.2

srEEEE)
RFERATS2EENAEARES
FREPHEEEFKINKERAE
B2 B TimzBREEER
A ERE AS R ERM AR -
A EERRBEZAFER  A5H
EEMSE2BERFERRRZEE
FRBETEERHEERLEER
BERH - EXFHRAMBRERPE
ER/IBBZRFES R ER
LEE - EEFBMBEREERE2
SIS BB A 2 AR D A E T
XRS5 - BREEEWGEREER
FRHEI[FEMBREER S
165 DARR 2 HE R 5 K B A FER
DEUELFFRFEZFEMEE
SRTEQER[FE P aA 2R F
BXEBSERIFE365E & ERIE]
e REE) BRI -

AEFRVMBEEZATER @8
mE2EREFBREAZSRKER
BEREEIEREHETRERARS
EREREEREEZHEMM L2
HEMELERLBENSE 28N - BA
B HEERFBRIAFEMNE
([BEHBREENFIBRD T 2R
FERMSER  TR%ERESR
ERBRREREMAETAMBE -

BRI R FERERN B RBIE
BAGEERHIBAAFEZMEER
MRSz HBETARKREYE &
BERMRRFERE S ERE - JAE
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3. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of Measurement (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised in note 4.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

3. (REEEE)

3.2

3.3

STEEEE)

o - I BHREmS - AFEGHE

BIEAFETE 2 8EH AR BR

&rﬂ-&gyﬂawmw&&z%
BHESIEEEIR - F2H K FES

ﬁ& %t LgnT

. FIREEGASEENTER
HIR] AR & E sk B EE)E R
MHEFHRECRIEAR)

s FRBEBBARMREEXE
BEEKEEABRZEES
ANBREFIRAZHRE) R

FIEBEBACINEELAR
THERZBEHA -

REZEEEMBHREARAZE
ZEFTBURE M 4t -

EREEREGAM B BRREERS
FHARTRRER - BMRAZFEAERE
BEEHRREHRTHRERRR

Hg o BEEREREKRINEGRE/MG
FEERHBA - FREEHE e

2 BE - HRELMEFHHEERETH
BRBEAZBEEH EEARE -

EEREINEE
mEMBERERRIOABE(EEDZ
5 MBEMRARARZNEEE -
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

44

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

4.

BEEBREBIE

CEEE £
GAMBREDEADTRARAT
RENBAREH 2 ER2 S
%0

WA ARIEBA T - EDERIS 241
#

s  HREEBWEREN:
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12l 4 o

EAREEIBUSHE AR 2 G
MEAREMAEGAAR: EAKHE
REHHBRR 2 EHIEE - HBEQ
A ABHEAEAR - ABME - A
PTUR B S AT E B R R 2 WA B 59
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AEBTBEGIMNBEARERIEFTA
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

44

4.2

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Joint Arrangements

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

4. FEEHBERMEERE)

44

4.2
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Joint Arrangements (Continued)

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of other parties’ interests in
the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
1o a third party.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

4.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)
Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and investment
properties which continue to be measured in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Investment Properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes.

Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 45 YE -BERREEE)

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing and capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
valuation of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
estimated useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each reporting date with the effect of any
changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease according to that standard.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Impairment of Other Non-Financial Assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the cost of right-of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.7 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease maodification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.7 Leases (Continued) 4.7 HE(E)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-
lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.7

4.8

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued) 4.8 MBI H(E)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset
or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

4.8.1 Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

4.8 MBI R(E)
4.8.1 I FEZE ()

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income, gains and losses” line item.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) and financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of the reporting period to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the end of
each reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for each debtor.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

4.

FESFBORBIE(R)

4.8 HMBIARE)
481 B EE (4E)
HEEEZREE)
iy EEREZHBEEGE)
© EBRAZHZKAE
R EE XA B R
HEBKBESRA
WA AERA
B HBRATEHE M
BRTIAEEEZ

+ X
S

(@ fEFRARTRER E X
EITHMIER
%

© ZHBEEZER
7545 Bt 7% IR B
Bk o

(iv) HSHEOR
WBERBTREFTEA
8% = B TS R 2 B EF PR ]
WEZHEMNEFRE
ETBERNEARER
Fr) » kB SEWGRIEE &
HARR B W F (AR P2 A&
BR%E)  ANEBRIRMEES
BEE - KEERLEER
(TEmA) % - s 2B
EEENRIREZ HIRASE
BB T ZHEE
&) o B BUEER
- HigayE ke

B iR o



20204¢H;

EPBE A RAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only in
the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is
the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8 MBEIAEE)

4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.8.1 I FEEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) B EEZ FEE)
(v  Measurement and recognition of ECL v TEHEEEBBEZFTER
(Continued) TR (E)
The Group recognises an impairment REBERERERB
gain or loss in profit or loss for all % T A 2 B & k8

financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.8 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.8.2 Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

4.8 MBEIR(E)
482 MBREMER#E D (F)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

4.9

410

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

410 U= FERR (4B)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (i.e. providing financial guarantee to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the contracts on
sales of properties), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)
4.10 Revenue Recognition (Continued)

410 W z= i858 (48)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (i.e. sales
commissions in relation to the sales of properties) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

411 Foreign Currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
translated using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the foreign exchange rates prevailing at
that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

412

413

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable. Such grants are presented under
“other income”.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.14 Taxation

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting 4. EEESFBRBEE)
Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation (Continued) 414 BIE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and interests in joint operation, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.14 Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

4.14 Taxation (Continued)
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

FESFBUORBIE(R)

414 BiIE ()

A MERERBATIN IR
fief B HA R A RE A% 1R £ A EL i 2 [ IR
AREER SR ZABER - B
HEREEHBANED R EEMEE
WASEZREm AR -

fisd (R (2 i) IR LATSE L - BIBDEATR
REERANBHEBEEEDREIRSE
5l

(@) AN ETE R il 1 HE F K 5
EREREE R

b BZFEEELE KFARE
REEREEAR -

.,,.mHHH”H”lH



A RRHARRARRRN

SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

4. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
4.15 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting
Policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

5.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)  Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings
The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value and buildings are stated at revalued amount based
on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued
amount, the valuer has based its valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison or the
residual method, as appropriate for respective
investment properties, and valuation on net replacement
cost method for buildings, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
appropriate capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value, estimated gross development value, estimated
cost of development and allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development, as appropriate. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market
conditions which are set out in notes 17 and 18. In
relying on the valuation report, management has
exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are appropriate for the
relevant property and reflective of current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, or other
unexpected incidents would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 December
2020, the fair value of Group’s investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings were approximately
HK$20,626,625,000 and HK$36,378,000 (2019:
HK$21,185,655,000 and HK$37,778,000), respectively.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)  Net realisable values of properties for sale
Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was approximately HK$940,144,000 (2019:
approximately HK$1,025,080,000).

5.
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6. Revenue 6. Wik
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AREB 2 EEEB 2 W R EMKRA DT
and other income is as follows: e
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) Wi E R &5 E AR

to Segment Revenue

2020 2019
—E-THF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 #ZR|E15HWKBER
ezl
Property development* YMIEER
— Sales of completed properties —EBEKTEME
for sale iHE 189,678 180,230
Building management and EFEERA MRS
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income Rz 7 W A 7,023 6,622
— Building management service — BFERRS
income N 15,105 14,715
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 37 &5 % 8|
under HKFRS 15 FHRKEEFPER
pal & 211,806 201,567
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income —HeRESEM
HEWA 478,484 532,305
Total revenue B0 i 690,290 733,872
* The segment names are defined in the section “Segment DEEBERRMEB[HEER]—

information” in note 8.

o

B
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6. Revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

e 2% (48)
i) e EE R R 53 M 3 R ()

.wmwmwm

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2020 segment segment Total
BFEER
BE_S-_SF+-_A=t+—HLEE VMEBRIE HGRBSE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR EETR EETR
Geographical markets i [& T 15
The Mainland China* A A 119,298 - 119,298
Hong Kong BB 70,380 22,128 92,508
189,678 22,128 211,806
Timing of recognition R A E
A point in time FE R ) G 189,678 - 189,678
Over time FEES R R - 22,128 22,128
189,678 22,128 211,806

*

For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong
Kong, Taiwan and Macau

C O ORERME FERLTEEES -
78 KR
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6. Revenue (Continued)
i) Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

W &= (48)
I 2 (2R P e 53 28 W 3 AR (48)

i)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2019 segment segment Total
BFERR
BHEZT-—NF+-A=+—HILEFE MEZERSE HUMRBSE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BT
Geographical markets i [E 15
The Mainland China* A A 173,092 - 173,092
Hong Kong BB 7,138 21,337 28,475
180,230 21,337 201,567
Timing of recognition & 5% B [
A point in time I A 2 180,230 — 180,230
Over time & 5 R HE 75 - 21,337 21,337
180,230 21,337 201,567

*

For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong
Kong, Taiwan and Macau

* HRERME - PEAMTIBERE

P
=W

R P
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 and thus all the revenue
recognised from the contracts with customers on sales
of properties is then allocated to the revenue from sales
of completed properties for sale.

6. W
ii)
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers (Continued)

Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining
Performance Obligation for Contracts with
Customers

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

6. W
ii)

i)

= (48)
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7. Other Income, Gains and Losses 7. HWA WEREE
2020 2019
k- e o3 3 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT ok e
7a. Other income 7a. Hiblr A
Interest income from financial assets at BEAFEFAERZ
FVTPL B & B 2 A B 4,602 4,581
Interest income from loan receivables JE UL B R Bk A 19,389 1,066
Other interest income E R S A 17,719 22,124
Forfeiture of deposits (note i) RUET & (M FED - 13,430
Government grants (note ii) KRS 5 B (B =) 8,906 —
Miscellaneous income ESERL N 27,387 17,943
78,003 59,144
7b. Other gains and losses 7b. Hib sz R 518
Reversal of impairment loss 2 5N IE R E BB
(impairment loss) on trade BRICRE/BIE) -
receivables, net Pt 501 (5,757)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEVE BEMREHEES
equipment B (3) —
498 (6,757)
Total income, gains and losses WA W RESIEAE 78,501 53,387
Note i: The amount represents forfeiture of deposits upon the termination Waki: REEZTE-—NF+-A=1+—HILFE"

Note ii:

of the sale and purchase agreement on sales of properties during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the current year, the Group recognised government grants of e i :

HK$8,906,000 in respect of Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong government.

ZERRRIEHENE 2 ER HE K

ZE® -

RARFERN AEBERBBBRFREHMR
¥ 5 8 7 R BT 4 B B 168,906,000

JT ©
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Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors of the
Company are determined following the Group’s major business
lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Property : Development of residential,
development commercial and industrial
properties

Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-
storage operation

Property leasing

Building : Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.

SEEH
AEERBAANRANTEETEHNERZ
N BEMBRNEREDBREHD
BER AEERTESREZXFZERRE
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8. HEAMGE)

These operating and reportable segments are monitored and hEEE R ZH D E 2 BEERRK 2
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment EERSBEERER -

operating results.

.,,.,,,HHHIH!HW

Segment Revenue and Results STEEERES
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
MEER MERE BrEBEREMRE SEER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
t et LA T F bbbl —T-NF febdeb AN - TG “Z-NF
HK$'000 EECTCTOO  HK$'000 MRS  HKS000 EENSICTO0OM  HKS'000 [ECX000)
EETT BoLEw EETT BECLEVA ERTT RS EETT kR
Revenue 1§+
External customers NERER 189,678 180230 478,484 532,305 22,128 21337 690,290 733,872
Inter-segments (note) &R () - - 108 432 1,334 2,004 1,442 2,436
Segment revenue SERE 189,678 180,230 478,592 532,787 23,462 23,341 691,732 736,308
Segment profits SERH 58,229 42874 435,829 472,206 23,675 17318 517,733 532,398
Certain other income, gains ETHEMBA Wi
and losses REE 33,435 19,779
Certain administrative expenses ETIHER (54,035) (88,535)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ
oz 7,778 -
Net fair value loss on REMELTEBE
investment properties bkl (452,999) (131,243)
Impairment loss on loan receivables & 4 & 3 A (& E5 18 (142,423) -
Finance costs BERA (36,885) (60,035)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BR BT B 2 A
expense (B18),/ &7 (127,396) 272,364
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms. M 5E %% FA T 4 S 1R AE B 1 E 2 16 R BR o
The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance LERERDBXEETEBRERENAE
costs, net fair value loss on investment properties, impairment REMELAFEBEFE BEREFREAE
loss on loan receivables, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, EiE - RERNBAR W - & THEMUK
certain other income, gains and losses, certain administrative AWz hEE BTTREREAERK

expenses and income tax expense.

P e
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8. Segment Information (Continued)

Segment Assets and Liabilities

8. HEEANGE)
PHEEERERE

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
NEER YERE BFEERAMRE HEEH
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
et bl —T-fF Beldet il TN F Betdet il —T-N5 BebdebEl —T-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT L ESEl AT BETT BEL AR AETT BECLEEA AT
Segment assets PEBE 1,260,121 1,302,330 20,912,425 21,396,340 28,250 24089 22,200,496 22,722,759
Certain property, plant and ET0% BERR

equipment 1,671 1,801
Short-term bank deposits BHBIER 425,668 250,000
Certain cash and cash equivalents %= THEEREELZEY 445,128 222,056
Assets classified as held forsale ~ DHABEZEE 63,787 420,000
Total assets BEAE 23,136,750 23,616,616
Segment liabilities HEER 363,230 424,754 232,011 286,230 8,107 9,068 603,348 720,052
Certain other payables BT HMENFTE 61,436 60,459
Borrowings BE 1,851,998  1944,063
Provision for income tax FiGRAR 127,042 165,647
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR 105,945 120,859
Total liabilties BERE 2,749,769 3,011,080

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, short-term bank deposits, certain cash

and cash equivalents and assets classified as held for sale.

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain
other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities

and borrowings.

THREEBREMEEE ETEREETY
X BELRERE EHRITENX-

T8
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. HE&EHGE)
Other Segment Information HipEEH
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total Unallocated Total
HEER NEHE BPEERAMRE SRS 98 @zt

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
o 2 T 0F ELELER T ECEER Fnf s il oThs il - T-Nf Eam T
HK$'000 BGISYO0M HK$'000 EEGICIGON HKS000 EEGICONIN HKS'000 EEGICONM HK$'000 EEGICION HKS000 SIS
rapll EETT EELERl AT EELSel ENTT Etieell AETT EELAR EX T EEEEel EYTI

Amounts included in the AR ERAGE
measure of segment profit: ZRE:
Interest income from financial assets KA FE AR 2

at FVTPL B EEZHIBIMA 4,602 4,581 - - - - 4,602 4,581 - - 4,602 4,581
Interest income from loan FERERFISMA
receivables 1,078 1,066 = - = - 1,078 1066 18311 - 19389 1,066
Other interest income EFERA 919 1100 29 663 188 562 1136 035 16583 19779 1719 2214
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ MiEAEHTE (465) (469) (5,454) (2.817) (106) (106) (6,025) (3.392) = - (6,025) (3392)
Depreciation of other property, plant  £46#1%  BRE R
and equipment SERE (103) (103 (1218 (4355 = - 378 (4459 (130) Bf) (1506 (5269
Reversal of (mpaiment losson £ K58
trade receivables, net (REHE&E
#E - - 505 (5,732) @ (25) 501 (5,757) - - 501 (5,757)
Impairment on loan receivables ERETAEEE - - - - - - - - (142429 - (142423 -
Forfeiture of deposits UGk - 18,430 - - - - - 18,430 - - - 13430
Amounts included in the AR EEEGE
measure of segment assets: 234 ¢
Additions tonon-current segment ~ £RERFERH
assets during the year NEEE 2 7 17419 890536 = — 17481 890610 = - 17480 8908610
Geographical Information E & E
The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non- AEBZIREFPR S REIETREE E (B
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into BT EBRIN D MHEATH[E :
the following geographical areas:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
ShRE B U EREEE

2020 2019 2020 2019
b ek S T 15 Embomb il T F
HK$’000 HK$'000 BGLE HK$'000
EETT EcLEwE ERTT kS

Principal markets EEFIH
— Hong Kong (domicile) — &8 (GEf) 570,992 560,780 20,773,055 21,334,673
— the Mainland China — B A 119,298 173,092 14,271 14,045

690,290 733,872 20,787,326 21,348,718
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8.
The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered.

The geographical location of non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets.

Information about Major Customer
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as

SEEHEE)

BEFZHBERDERRM 1RHEE R
RIGZMBETE - SERBEEZHMED R

/

TEREEZERAEL

FRAXEERZEH

AT BHEBEERAANEEEREB10%

W BB TP 2 W

follows:
Year ended
BEUTHEHILEEE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—EB-%F —E-NF
+T=A=+—H k=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T

Customer A (Note) EPA)
— Property leasing —WEHRE N/A 7 & 90,678

Note: Revenue from Customer A did not exceed 10% of total revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

WaE: RBE_E-_FTF+_A=1+—HLEFE "
REBFEAR U T BB B U 25 71910% °

9. Finance Costs 9. BNERAE

2020 2019
=t et 32 —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T

Interest expenses on: UTEEBEZABZH:
Borrowings EE 36,417 57,201
Lease liabilities HEAaE 468 309
Others Hit - 2,525
36,885 60,035
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(Loss)/Profit before Income Tax Expense 10.
(Loss)/Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

BR P 1% BiBA S i (B548), i #
BRETEBIB AT B 1R) EFIB NG

.,,unHHH”””W

charging/(crediting): AN)T5I&1E
2020 2019
- e o3 —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Auditor’'s remuneration BRI & 3,062 3,350
Cost of completed properties held for MRAEAI ZEEREE
sale recognised as expenses L ES PN 100,317 115,499
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE M8
(note 18) 6,025 3,392
Depreciation of other property, plantand ~ H ¥ ¥ - BMELRETE
equipment (note 18) (M 3E18) 11,506 5,269
Employee compensation expense EERMAL (BIEESHE
(including Directors’ remuneration and K TE #R A AR AS) (M 5E12)
defined contribution cost) (note 12) 124,858 126,844
Rentals in respect of short-term leases CHHEREREEHREZ
and low-valued leases iz 467 680
Revaluation deficit on property, plantand  #1% - MERREZ EH
equipment B8 388 —
Gross rental income from investment KEWMHEAS WAL
properties (478,484) (632,305)
Less: Direct operating expense arising WoEEHSWAZERE
from investment properties that MEMEEZEE
generated rental income S 23,716 29,167
Less: Direct operating expense arising B REEHESRAZIEE
from investment properties that MEFREEZB%E
did not generate rental income LB 43 192
(454,725) (502,946)
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEEBZME
Emoluments
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (@ EEM£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were ENRENESMESIT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BRERH
He HeREE REAMEREL SRR @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-%E£
+ZAZ+-HLEE
Executive directors LTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Belkat 120 5,652 7,649 18 13,439
Ms. Chan Wai Ling BEZNE 120 4,320 6,849 18 11,307
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEEHEE 120 2,100 175 18 2,413
Independent non-executive directors BIERTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BBl g o 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B EAE 168 - - - 168
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 177 - - - 177
883 12,072 14,673 54 27,682
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-F-1%
+-A=+-BLEE
Executive directors ATES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Bekut 120 5,652 5,161 18 10,951
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ/)E 120 4,320 4,361 18 8,819
Mr. Tse Wai Hang (appointed on HEGERERZZ-NE
1 September 2019) NA—HREZH)" 40 2,006 170 18 2,234
Independent non-executive directors BILEHTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang Wi Rl g o 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B EE 164 - - - 164
Mr. Ng Chi Keung REREE 172 - - - 172
794 11,978 9,692 54 22,518

* Include remuneration before the appointment

* B Em AT 2
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2019: nil).

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2019: three)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining two (2019: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

N EEREREEEZNE (B)

(a)

(b)

EENE ()
EIBTEEMES IR REERAR
A MAKBEER 2 R MT - £
BUFATESTHME IR MF R
BEMXA -

ETHTESAEREXMNERAEK
BRIRE T AL °

1 39 B R AT TTERAREL -

FABBETALZHFESESTARELR
RRFABHRRETAFM (T —NF:
&)

AfimEHAL

AEE - AEEBRURSHALERE
ZR(CENFZREEREF
ZME R Bl 2 DT o FREER
ME(CE-NF - MBALZHE
LN

.,,unHllH”””W

2020 2019
—E-FEF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT ok e
Basic salaries, bonuses and other EXFHE  EAK

benefits H 18 F 7,397 7,398
Performance-related bonuses FIRMEBEEA 7,933 5,444

Pension costs — defined contribution B K& B A — F 2B X
plan &l 18 18
15,348 12,860
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEBZME (E)

Emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2019: two)
individuals fell within the following bands:

(b)

AfimE#H AL (&)
HHBEMBE(CE-NF - MBIALZ
Mo mAaRIT:

Number of individuals

HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 78 #54,500,0017T —
7 5,000,0007T

HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000 7 157,500,001 —
75 8,000,000

HK$10,000,001 — HK$10,500,000 75 10,000,001 7T —
7 #10,500,0007T

N
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NEF
1 1
- 1
1 —

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

BEZZ-ZTFR-_T—NF+=A
=+—BHIEMEFESE  AEEH
ERAEEY AN TR FALER—AL
SHRME  EREFEEMALAERR
RINARE B 2 88 kBB 2 1/
B BEMEEERNERRAERREM
B < o
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12. GERFIAZX(BREFWNE)

Directors’ Emoluments)

.,,unHllH”””W

2020 2019
—E-FF —ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T

Salaries and wages (including Directors’ FekIBEBEEEMS)
remuneration) and bonus EEAN 118,420 120,694

Pension costs — defined contribution RIRE A —E B R E
plans (note) (B 3E) 4,090 3,670
Staff welfare ET &R 2,348 2,480
124,858 126,844

Note: B o

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group incurred employee
compensation expenses of HK$40,789,000 (2019: HK$41,171,000)
included in the above employee benefit expense, which is employed on
behalf of the third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building
management services. Such expenses are set-off with other income from
building management services received by the Group.

AEBERERIEAES (RES)HBIEH - A
HFASARSNARSHE 2 ERRATHELK
RUEFHE - HEDRERRAFEZESL
S -

REBE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HLEERN ' &~&
B 2 8 #40,789,0007T (- ZE—h 4 : B 41,171,000
TEEFHHASEREE LMEERANAIA &
AZENBARRHEFEERERAFZF=FAR
AXAEEEH A o Mz RSB R
BFEEREAMEEMBRATIAKE -
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13. Income Tax Expense

13

. IR HAX

2020 2019
=p et 33 —ENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR PR T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEMEH:
Tax for the year (note (a) REZFIAE M @) 60,785 46,574
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax: AR A 1 SRS AR
Tax for the year (note (b)) NG FE 18 (M 5% (o) 5,582 8,695
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax oAk b S B R
(“LAT") (note (c)) ([ 3B EF D (M 7E () 4,536 4,938
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAFERNRE (B8 BE 1,706 (8,959)
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (note 27) ELEREER) X H
(B 7E27) (14,663) 3,441
57,946 54,689
Notes: B 5

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

BEBNAER=-_E—\F=A=1+—HEB
COTER B UET(ETF)IEHIERITE
B])) HEEFESHMAS - ERR=ZF—/N\
F=A=TNBETBER - TRBEFE -
ERESHERATT  AEREEEREEEE
2E BB ZFFHEK A8.25% + MiBiA
PEHEOE BT A ERIIZ16.5% L REF o T
AR FI) 15 B AR AR A 2 SR B g 2 A
He 1B 1516.5% 2 B — T R B -

EERR EBEOMNEHRMRGMAIRZE
B HRAVBBREAMELTEX - MEF
B2 BB IR b5 R FR
£16.5% 5T & o
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13. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(0)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, all of the Group’s Mainland
China subsidiaries were subject to Mainland China EIT rate of 25%
(2019: 25%).

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT (AR % A B H£ 0 E 4 3 38
B B 77 1% 1)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the
Mainland China on LAT ((F 2 A R M B + it 2 EH E TR0 &
e 48 BIl ) ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the Mainland China is subject to LAT at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development
expenditures in relation to the gains arising from sales of properties
in the Mainland China effective from 1 January 2004, with an
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential
properties ( & B 1Z % {£ = ) if their appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

13. MR BiREX (&)

s (&)

(®)

HE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HIEFE &
& A A B A I B R A #R25% (T —
TLEE  26%) 2 T R A b B A it 1 AT AS
Bt o

BIER—NAMFE—B—BER 2(REA
REMBE T EEBRGTHEIRR—AN
AF—A-+EtHEB (P EAREFNER
TR ERETIRGIEEMED B =TT
ME—A—B#  ERERMD SR EER
BLMFERE  BZEVRERZWZHRER
A AR EEE30% E60% 2 2 HE i R 4
Mt EER WEBANHEWEMSRK
BRAAMBELE - SREEEEFER S
EMEMBREZEERARARMERES
oo T BIEEEEZ EEERBAINH
B HB%E20% - TRIEEEEZWEHEA
B L EER -

v,,.,uullH”””lH
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13.

Income Tax Expense (Continued) 13. FIRHEAI(E)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and (loss)/profit FISBAZ XK
before income tax expense at applicable tax rates is as i A i &

follows:

BLA AT (E#8),/
BB RFEZHRWT -

2020 2019
—E-FTE — N
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR ST IT
(Loss)/profit before income tax MEFEHRAZM(EBE),
expense i Fll (127,396) 272,364
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REEFEHHE16.5%
of 16.5% FTE2BIA (21,020) 44,940
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7f EMRzERZH BT & 89,262 24,825
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERR WA B2 (15,491) (8,879)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ~ BB E AR 2R IE A
losses (980) (813)
Under/(oven)-provision in prior years BAFERETR/
(HBEREH) 1,706 (8,959)
Provision for LAT for the year FR IS ER G 4,536 4,938
Tax effect of LAT deductible for AR A1 FE RIS B 2 AT
Mainland China EIT WL IBER R E (748) (815)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ 7£ ﬁ AR EE KB
operating in other jurisdictions RAIZAPRME 2 8 1,898 2,956
Others i) (1,217) (3,504)
Income tax expense FiEHiEx 57,946 54,689
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14. Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense), 14. HE2HEUW AN (FAX) » 0B

Net of Tax I51&

The amount of tax relating to each component of other FHAEMEEBA (AX)EBIZ2HE
comprehensive income/(expense) can be summarised as SEMIN AT

follows:

2020 2019
—B-BE —T-NF
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
F Bt wi BIE B #i1g BR B AT I BR 1%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT T BET T BET T

ltern that will not be reclassified to X T A& T8 Z#

profit or loss: PDHEEE
Deficit on revaluation of buildings ~ EBFE {418

(notes 10, 18 and 27) (310 - 181227) (132) 22 (110) 692) 114 (578)
Item that may be reclassified WUTHARGAREERD

subsequently to profit or loss: DHEEE
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of & &5 4 ¥ 75 2 [E 3,

foreign operations Wz (E1E) 23,559 - 283,559 (11,118) - (11,118)

Other comprehensive income/ H#t2EH A /(FX)
(expense) 23,427 22 23,449 (11,810) 114 (11,696)
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15.

Dividend 15. IR 2

(a) Dividend Attributable to the Year

(a)

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BEAAREER
(2019: HK$0.20) per share B0 (ZE— N4
& ¥0.207T)

2019

—B-EHE —E-NF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
HEETT BT T
56,662 56,662

Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2019: HK$0.20) per share for
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 3 June 2021 was proposed by
the Directors on 25 March 2021.

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

(b) Dividend Attributable to the Previous
Financial Year, Approved and Paid during the
Year

(b)

Final dividend in respect of the previous B B BF E 2 REIRR B

financial year of HK$0.20 per share BREK0.207T(ZE—N

(2019: final dividend of HK$0.20 per FRHBRBERBE

share) 0.207T)

BERN_E_—F=-A-_tHBAE=
AR -_ZE-—FENA=ZBRIREE
Hff 2z PR R A AR E R HA R B E AR
7S #0207t (ZF — L F : 7 #50.20
JT) °

REEAHREZZRABE T E

RBESEAHERRAE -

BEVBREEZRE  RERE
#tt o R 32

2020 2019
—EB-EE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T

56,662 56,662
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16. (Loss)/Earnings per Share

17.

The calculation of the (loss)/earnings per share of the Company
is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$185,807,000 (2019: profit of HK$217,782,000)
and the number of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2019:
283,308,635) in issue during the year.

No diluted (loss)/earnings per share for year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 was presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Investment Properties

16. BRIk (F518) i H

AARER(ERE),EFRNTEERFEA
NARER A (G FE A ETE 5 %185,807,000
TL(ZZ— N4 : = F#%217,782,0007T) &
2317 58 A% # H 283,308,635 (ZZ— A
£F 1 283,308,6350% ) °

(E_E_TER_E-NAF+A=+—
Etﬁfﬁﬁzﬂtﬁxﬁﬁ%ﬁ(gﬂé)//m*'
EREZE T _EER_T-NAF+Z
R=+—BLEFEVEBRT EELR
A% o

17. HEYME

2020 2019
i 33 “T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Fair Value AEE
As at 1 January R—A— 21,185,655 20,439,237
Additions EA
— Purchase of units —BEEN - 854,426
— Construction costs — R 2,356 23,235
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 37) EREHEEE M7 (63,787) —
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(b)-(e)) o &5 BT 8 2 7] (BY 5£38(0)-(e)) (44,600) —
Net fair value loss on investment properties KEYENTEERFE (452,999) (131,243)
As at 31 December RTZA=+—H 20,626,625 21,185,655

.mll”””””””“
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend. The leases of retail stores
contain minimum annual lease payments that are fixed over the
lease term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores
are determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the
monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2020 and 2019 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value;

17.

BEMEGE)
AEERBELEHAEHAMEREFT T
AERZERHE BEBASAIT - ZE
HE—WMBEHARE—Z=F A%
ANERETARVAEBEERERE - X
HHoBHBEMERFTIERT - AeFAHEA
TEERE ZTERANEEEERNEE
HABRENRESFRAENK MEEHE
HNETHENHENRALEEERET
BHEBNFI0O%E2ENHNE SEETE o

RE B R 5% 5 E % PR e NS
% RARMAREANEEEESA L
DREEWHE ZFHOLTESRRE
BEERREFABARERERTBEZ
UE A Sy

AEBMERENEEUARTFEEXFE
WD BARFFTAREDE -

AEBEZRENEHBUAERERMEE
BB RITARAR(BERITINR_F=
ZER_T-NEF+-_A=T—"HREFE
A EEME S EERTZmEEEET
Eff:

o EEKEREVME(BERRET)RA
WABROERER  EFFRERFE
AL EREFEEZE T MHA
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Investment Properties (Continued)

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to
market transactions of comparable properties; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

17. ?xﬁ%%(.@

ERREMEERNEM(BER
% TEREEDR)RMTEEY
R)RBRERLERER  EHh2E
ALEMEZT SRS R

s EERRBEVERAANBKEIREEE
HBL - BEMNDEEREBEIRE
& BEMZEMER HERIZRE
BERTRBERIEK K - X&HB
ERBEMNKATERERKT (B
BEMRA EXER  BEKAN
B R AN Ko 22 70 [ R 2% e R B 2 R TR
MERE 2 B w0 s A BB M E o

EERRANE L ATES AREER
WA A E R EMETEE - BEE
BB AERELEEDA fF - RERA
BT B 0B 4 LB R B

BREMEAFELREALD AREE
ERBFE -

KRB EAER - EEECEREHE -
WERMARA 2 EETEZBEE L RRE
B T ©

-wHHHHIHHW
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17.

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement
during both years.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used).

REWE(H)
AEBMRANE Z REEAERATE
e - NAEFEN  DERENEBA
SHEEIRAFEE -

TRBIEMNAEERSRENEZ A
ST (8 (35 B2 B 50 R 0 £ 18 5 1 2 B0 >
B A o

Investment properties Interrelationship between
held by the Group in significant unobservable
the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2020 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
AEERGEMBRAR et 22 TERTHEHEA
FEzRENE :Kﬂs?o-'- BZAEE HERHF TETTHEHR TEFTHERR2EE "#E‘tiZEﬁBﬂﬁ
0
BETT

Completed investment
properties

EERBRENE
Completed investment properties 15,706,000
(whole block of commercial (2019: 16,092,000) method
building)
BAREANE 16,706,000 LN VN EEEE
(REHEET) (ZZ-NE:
16,092,000)
Capitalisation rate
BRc %
Completed investment properties 2,244,625 Direct comparison Price per square foot
(individual units (including (2019: 2,373,655) method
commercial, industrial and
residential properties) or ground
floor retail properties)
BERRENE 2,244,625 BERBZE FIHRER
UERIB (BEES TRRE (CE-AF
ENE)IHTEENE) 2,373,655)

Income capitalisation ~ Reversionary rental value  HK$23 - HK$56 (2019:

The higher the reversionary
rental value, the higher the
fair value

HK$23 - HK$56) per
month per square foot for
upper-level office/
restaurants premises;
HK$74 - HK$1,089 (2019:
HK$78 - HK$1,164) per
month per square foot for
ground floor shops N N
BERLE EBESH EEHEELR ATESR
BYHREAEKBTE
Ao (ZT-NF
BB E BE6TT)
wEHETHREA
AETATLE 51,080
(ZE-—NF:BEBTE
H¥1,1647T)

2.25% - 3.5% (2019:
2.25% - 3.5%)

2.25%%3.5%
(ZE—N%F:2.25%
Z3.5%)

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value

AR EER DT EBE

HK$8,300 - HK$135,000
(2019: HK$8,300 -
HK$140,000) per square
foot for commercial
properties

HK$2,600 - HK$11,300 (2019:
HK$2,500 - HK$11,300)
per square foot for
industrial properties

HK$5,200 - HK$28,000
(2019: HK$5,200 -
HK$28,200) per square

The higher the price per square
foot, the higher the fair value

foot for residential
properties

BRENEBTHREE  STHRERMES
8,3007T £ /% #135,0007T AFEES

CE-AE:SFHRE
18,3007 2 1% 140,000

JT)
TENESTFHREE2,600

7L E B 11,3007 (ZE—

NE: B ¥ REK2500
 LEE#11,3007T)
E%%%iﬁww\%zoo

JLE 28,0007 (=

NE: t?ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%azoo

JLE 7 #28,2007T)
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17. REMERE)

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

of HK$1,066,550,000 as at 31 December 2018 has changed the
valuation technique from direct comparison method to residual
method during the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the
additional premises acquired in the building and the management’s
decision on the usage of the building. The fair value of this building
is HK$2,010,000,000 as at 31 December 2019.

the consolidated statement  Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2020 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
FEARGEMBRAR R-ZB-¥E FEFTHEHRA
FrazRENE TZHET—-BZAFE HERE TEFTHEHR TEFTEEHREE AFEAEZEAMRG
HK$'000
BET
Investment properties under re-development
ERBEmE
Investment properties under 2,676,000 Residual method Price per square foot HK$21,500 - HK$22,400 The higher the price per square
re-development (2019: 2,720,000)* per square foot for foot, the higher the fair value
office premises
(2019: HK$22,000 -
HK$23,300 per square foot
for office premises);
HK$26,000 - HK$32,000
(2019: HK$27,000 -
HK$33,000) per square
foot for retail properties
ERRENE 2,676,000 FehE BERRER WRENEFGTHAREE BFHRERES AFE
(ZZ-NE: 21,500 £ A 22400 BB
2,720,000 * (ZE-NEFHAENE
FEHREE2,000mE
7 #23,3007T)
ZEMEFIAR
7 126,000 2
7 #32,0007T
(ZF—h%F:
#2700 2
7 #33,0007T)

Estimated construction HK$3,600 - HK$3,900 (2019:  The higher the estimated
and other professional HK$3,600 - HK$3,900) per construction and other
costs to completion square foot professional costs, the lower

the fair value

R TEKARRER §F 5 RE3,600T M BRERABEEKA
Hit ZEMAK EHH3,000T WE - AFEBE

(ZZ—NE - B¥3,6007T
Z#H3,0007T)

Estimated profit margin 10% - 15% (2019: 10-15%) The higher estimated profit
required to hold and margin, the lower the fair
develop the investment value
properties to
completion

RERERRENEET 10%ZE15% e FEEgs A TE
WA E A Ex (ZF— L% : 10-15%) B

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, a building with fair value * BHE-Z—NF+=-A=1+—HBLEEFEE ' —

BR-_Z—N\E+-_A=+—RBA2FELEE
#1,066,550,000Tc 2 EFERBEE=T— 1L
FH+_A=T—BHLFEHHERINHERE
EBEZEERFRE  WIHERZEFA
Bz EINDEUAREEERZIETZ
ABREHZRERB - RZE—IE+=A
=+ — B UREFZAFEAREK
2,010,000,0007T °
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. HEME(E)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the FRIA BB FRAN - FNIRE Y 2 E B
investment properties other than disclosed above during the A A ) o
year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above investment NEEAENEB EAEEMEZRGD R
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain xERE B TREVMECATFEELA
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid B DR TES B R E A EW AR
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting. WABBEIEFTE
As at 31 December 2020, certain investment properties of the RZZE_ZFTF+_A=+—H ~x5£BE®
Group with total carrying amount of approximately BRE BB 4978 113,744,500,0007T (ZF— A1,
HK$13,744,500,000 (2019: approximately HK$13,935,600,000) 4 : #4975%13,935,600,0007T) Z & TR EY)
were pledged to secure borrowings of HK$1,851,998,000 K1 DA JE HR & E 4 7 161,851,998,0007T
(2019: approximately HK$1,944,063,000) (note 26). (ZZ—N5F : A975%1,944,063,0007T) Z &
& (Fff 5=26) °
18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. MI¥ - MERRE
Leasehold Leasehold  Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties
[ 4
HELH B¥ HENERE KERRHE RE HEYE k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BRI BETT BRI BETT BRI BRI
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 80,703 37,778 22,519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
Additions #R - - 3,672 2 - 11,451 15,125
Disposal/write-off HE /i - - - - (5) - (5)
Deficit on revaluation (notes 10 and 14) & {5 18 (Fi £ 105 14) - (520) - - - - (520)
Depreciation E (541) (880) (10,202) (244) (180) (5,484) (17,531)
Exchange realignment EXAE 643 - - 7 19 - 669
Closing net carrying amount FREDFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,113 16,722 151,450
As at 31 December 2020 ) k- k- - 3
+zB=t+-8
Cost/Valuation KA/ ffE 88,484 36,378 44,369 13,203 3,822 25,047 211,303
Accumulated depreciation Bt E (7,679) - (28,380) (12,760) (2,709) (8,325) (59,853)
Net carrying amount REFE 80,805 36,378 15,989 443 1,113 16,722 151,450
Analysis of cost/valuation BA/fEES
At cost BKA 88,484 - 44,369 13,203 3,822 25,047 174,925
At professional valuation REZRE - 36,378 - - - - 36,378

88,484 36,378 44,369 13,203 3,822 25,047 211,308
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + &= R & (&)

Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties Total
B
ME+Ti BF HENELE RERZE e HENE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNREFE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 - 127,218
Adjustments upon the application of EREBHBREER
HKFRS 16 FoRk AR 17,305 - - - - 5,822 23,127
Additions IR - - 5,101 74 - A 12,949
Deficit on revaluation (note 14) EfEEB (M) - (692) - - - - (692)
Depreciation wE (s51) (908) (3:178) (924) (259) (2,841) (8,661)
Exchange realignment X AE (219) - - ©) [l - (229)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 80,703 37,778 22,519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-N&
+zA=+-8
Cost/Valuation KA/ T {E 87,556 37,778 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,596 196,703
Accumulated depreciation 23§ (6.853) - (18,281) (12,429) (2,587) (2,841) (42,991)
Net carrying amount BEFE 80,703 37,778 22519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
Analysis of cost/valuation BA/EENT
Atcost BRA 87,556 - 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,596 158,925
At professional valuation REERGE - 37,778 - - - - 37,778
87,556 37,778 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,506 196,703
The above items of property, plant and equipment less their FaimzE BEMREBEEEHEMGAFAIA
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight- HAFEREZZE BT FRREFHE
line method, at the following rates per annum: &:
Leasehold lands/leased properties Over the lease period HE+H THEWE R EIA
Buildings 2% BF 2%
Leasehold improvements 10%-30% HEMERE 10%-30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20% XKL HERFE 10%-20%

Motor vehicles 6%-15% R E 6-15%
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$36,378,000 (2019:
HK$37,778,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2020, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$520,000 (2019: HK$692,000) had been recognised.

As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$98,873,000 (2019:
HK$100,350,000) were pledged to secure borrowings of the
Group (note 26).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

There was no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

V¥ BRERREGE)
R-ZE-_ZTE+_A=+—H NEERE
7 2 18 5 DA {H B 75 836,378,000 (— & —
JLEF « #E37,778,0007T) 5Bk - ANEE ZHE
FHEBBRTERFEEXNLRELEMR - HE
TS+ A=+ HULEFEERES
1B 4 78 #520,0000L (= — L F: B K
692,0007T) EfER °

RZB_ZF+_A=+—H AEEEF
BRE B & /8 98,873,000 (— T — N5 :
7#5%100,350,0007T) 2 M & 1 #b RIEF LA
SRR 2 EE (F5E26) °

AREFEERBFZATFEAFIHEELEA
TEFE - FURFRATFEESHZH R
YR o

RAFE  WERBALEHEIR -

2020 2019
=t 5 —EFNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR PR T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHEEHR (BIRLET M
fair value) NF1E) 37,778 39,378
Depreciation e (880) (908)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held EMFIEERAMEZEE
for own use (520) (692)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FRESR(EIRETMN
value) NEE) 36,378 37,778
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the owner-occupied buildings, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building

held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation

Significant

18. W% - Wi ERaR & (&)
EEEBRTAVER AEECZREBEY
BEBREXRMEMETHE - EEEES
TYREAEMBEMLEMEEREIRDTE
EFEEE 2 HERMEEE - HEHE
FRAFELRAEXES  HERESTHRE
KERE -

RAFE HERTHEZSE -

RNFEFEDEREAYEZ &S R RE
g BEERASTEER-

TR EMMAET RS RTATFE
B2 B8 B 1 (B B R BOB) 2 B K -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable

Range of significant input(s) and fair value

at revaluation model 31 December 2020 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
RZF=-%E
FEEBARER +=ZA=t+-H FEFTREHRA
BREGFEZETF ZATE fEERE ETETTHEHR TETTHEYB2HEE ATFEAEZIHERR
HK$'000
BBTT
Owner-occupied buildings 36,378 (2019: 37,778) Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4,300 per square feet The higher the building
per square feet (2019: HK$4,300) (note) replacement cost per feet
with reference to
comparables, the higher
the fair value
BRETF 36378 (ZE—NF: FEERK BYAREBFEEM AR BEFREBL00T(ZE  SBRILENEIERET

37,778)

Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

— NV - 5%4,3007) SERANS - ATEM
(W) B

=
oy

C BFTREFEERATIZEN S LAILR
ZEETEMERE  EHhsthkAg  LEMN
REBERBEYBASHEMENRZE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + [ & Re] & (&)

The Group as Leasee EREEBERBEAN
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and FREEEGIAYE  BELEZE)
equipment)

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total

HEL# HEME k]

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT EETR EETR

As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+ - H =+—H 80,703 10,755 91,458
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+ZA=+—8H 80,805 16,722 97,527
For the year ended 31 December & ZE_-ZT— N
2019 T-A=+t—HLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (551) (2,841) (3,392)
Additions R - 7,774 7,774
Exchange realignment fE X & (219) - (219)
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLERE (2,718)

For the year ended 31 December HZE-Z—-F

2020 TZA=tT—HIEHFE

Depreciation charge EMXZ (541) (5,484) (6,025)

Additions R - 11,451 11,451

Exchange realignment b X 3 & 643 - 643

Total cash outflow for leases HERESRLRE (5,777)
For both years, the Group leases various commercial and RABEEE AEEHRETRmERITE
industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are MELAMEZE - HON=ZZNFZEEF
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have HARTS - MERJ AN TP A RIB 2R -
extension options as described below. In determining the lease RECHEBARFGAITEEFERRE A&
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, EEAAGHZERTEEANRFNITZ
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines FHf o

the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The Group as Leasee (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December

18.

ME - BERRIEE)
AEEEHEBAANE)
AEBERETRERERIXMENEE
THRATREERE RTEERSBYE
ERAAEEEERBELMANEEL Y
BRM - IRy EREZEETR
AEBEITEM AR BB L EAITE -
AEEREERKBERTAREREST
FREREEE - ARBE Y RERETEZ
FEREERNARBENRZEER
g -

=

Potential future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities
as at 31 December

2020 2019 2020 2019
R+=-A=+—B®%ZEH R+-ZBE+—HBXRHABEEREDN
HEaRE BERKREERFR
ket 33 —E-0f —ECEE —E-hE
(undiscounted) (undiscounted)
(R#TIR) (R#TIR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T ik BT T
Commercial and BERIEME
industrial premises - &%
— Hong Kong 17,413 11,271 58,283 32,329

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group did not exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there is no
such triggering event.

RBE_T_TFER_T-NF+_A=+
—BHIEFE  AEEYETEEAERE
B

BESh  RBEBAEHRBRLREAE
PEBRARAPTEEZHIBER - AEE
CE[MELHRETETRERE -NEE
T FFR-FNAFFTA=T AL
FE BEAHABESMN -

,,,m,mml”\mH
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥1% - G E R # (&)
Restrictions or covenants on leases H S PR H 3 258
In addition, lease liabilities of HK$17,413,000 are recognised oh RZE_FF+_A=+—0H ' #R
with related right-of-use assets of HK$33,517,000 as at 31 T Ea BB 17413,0007T @ HEEEREE
December 2020 (2019: lease liabilities of HK$11,271,000 and EAB33,517000L (ZE—hE eS8
related right-of-use assets of HK27,372,000). The lease BB #11,271,0007T R ARRE (5 F#EE E R
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the #27,372,0007T) - BREHBE AR AN REE
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the BEMBEAEZIN  BEHZE TEINERA
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for R  MEEAETSHEGRIKME -
borrowing purposes.

19. Properties for Sale 19.

2020 2019
—B-FE —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZEHEE 1,025,080 954,855
Additions R 2,093 194,513
Disposals e (100,317) (115,499)
Exchange realignment PE H 3 & 13,288 (8,789)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKMAA 940,144 1,025,080
2020 2019
- e o3 —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Completed properties for sale EEXEFEEWE 385,569 448,306

Properties under development HTEBRRTYE
for sale 554,575 576,774
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEBE 940,144 1,025,080
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19. Properties for Sale (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, properties for sale of
HK$554,575,000 represent the carrying amount of the
properties expected to be completed over one year from the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, properties for sale of
HK$552,482,000 represent the carrying amount of the
properties expected to be completed over one year from the
end of the reporting period. The remaining carrying amounts
represent the properties to be completed within one year from
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
approximately HK$3,360,000 (2019: HK$3,360,000) to jointly
develop a property site for residential purpose located at 1-11
Lai Yin Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in
which the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the
Directors determined that the Group’s share of the completed
units would be put up for sale when completed and,
accordingly, reclassified its proportionate share of the interest
in this property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2020, there is no revenue and cost of properties for
sale recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the properties for sale under the joint operation recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$7,138,000 and cost of properties
for sale of approximately HK$5,994,000.

19. HEMEE)
i

—E-EF+_A=1+—H FEWEHS
#554,575,0007T 4 T8 BR 5 1A ¥R &5 BA R AR &1
BE—FBI2YEZEREEE-

R-B-NEFE+-_A=1+—8 SEWEH
#5552,482,0007T 4 T8 B 5 1A R &5 BA R A &1
BE—FRTZYEZEEE - Z4ER
EAERBEHRBT —FRETIZME
ZERMEE °

RZB-_ZEHE+-_A=1+—H OEXEFE
Y2 B —I8 5B 478 3,360,0000T (=& —
JLEF B #3,360,000T) 2 A &IBE ¢ LA
FEM#E—EALREBAMEBEFIZNRKL
ELE2ERFEEEEAR 2 EME &
AL EEE20.24% 2 B - R — Y
F EEREAEEDGZEEKEMNB
REKBRE @ Bt - ANEE S EIZ L)
Bz EEREE#EZ  AEEREY
XSTOBERERRITYE - AEEK
BRIAEEEEEBZEE  BE WK
=ZhAX  BEFEREBEZE_Z—XRF+=
A=+ —RALEFERBEHAETIE - R
HE-_Z-_ZTZFE+-_A=+—HBItFE &
ERERAREREHERER - HE_T—
NE+_A=1+—BILFE 2B TZ
FEYE SRS H B E7138,0007T K ) 2 6
&K R %) 7 #55,994,0007T °

-wHHHHIHHW



(HRTHATHA

2

5

6

SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

20. ESRHEMEWKRIE FEWK

Receivables B
2020 2019
—EB-FE —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T IT BET T
Current assets: HEEE -
Trade receivables 5 W FIA
— contract with customers —EFEA4 3,933 8,017
— rental receivables —ElES 39,879 19,266
Total trade receivables ESEINGRIARE 43,812 27,283
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (5,072) (5,834)
Total trade receivables, net B oW RIA AR - 55 38,740 21,449
Loan receivables (Note) eI E SR (FRE) 147,298 4,919
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (142,423) —
Total loan receivables, net JEWE K E%E - F5E 4,875 4,919

Other receivables, utility deposits and
prepayment

HAib eI RTE - DER
Be MIENFOR 127,553 69,215

Total trade and other receivables

DRERRBEEZES R

categorised as current assets E fth pE Uk 3R 0B 4B 58 171,168 95,583
Non-current assets: FET B EE
Loan receivables (Note) FE U E S (FRE) 19,761 26,890
190,929 122,473
As at 1 January 2019, the gross carrying amount of trade RZBE—NF—A—B REHAFZFEHH
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to B 5 W GRIE 2 SR 2 &7 8,947,000
HK$8,947,000. JT °
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, based on invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, was the following:

20. ESRHEMEKRIE FEWK

B&(E)
RZBEZZEFERZT-NF+A=+—H
BEZZEEH  BSRKAKEBEINREEE
BREEEZERSWERHIDOT

wwwwwm

2020 2019

ot ek 3. 3 —ZE-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

0-30 days 0230k 15,135 11,772
31-90 days 31ZE90K 7,997 6,176
91-180 days 912180k 8,564 2,976
Over 180 days B #E180K 7,044 525
Total trade receivables, net B oW RIA B - 55 38,740 21,449

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$38,740,000 (2019: HK$21,449,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$15,608,000 (2019: HK$3,501,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RnE BUESRSBEWRZZFDE
HERKESIN AEETEREMES
Y BR 4K 4 a

AR -TE+—A=+—H AEFE B
SFERFBEERBEN RS APE AR
E#2(E 5 138,740,0007C (T — .5 : B
21,449,0007T) Z BT A © 1 81 AR 45 i b -
& #15,608,000L(= & — N F: B &
3,501,0007T) B8 HI90 KBk LA | » TIF 4R
BEHN RARZEZEBALAEEGR
HEBBE MrEEBALESARE
RBEEEEBEAIE 208k °

BRAE S WG IR 2B B R IA B F R AD
8% BRIEASEEAWREZERIR A8
HBE - EZERT  HEBRSEERN
B 5 & WK T M o
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20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 39.2(b).

Note:

As at 1 January 2019, included in loan receivables is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate minus 2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year
from reporting date. The repayment date of these loan receivables was
extended by one year during the year ending 31 December 2019 and
2020.

For the remaining loan receivables amounting to HK$20,636,000 (2019:
HK$27,809,000) which are secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime
Interest Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2019: 2% to 2.5% per annum)
for the first 36 months from the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at
the Hong Kong Prime Interest Rate. The loan receivables were repayable in
216 to 360 monthly instalments (2019: 216 to 360 monthly instalments)
with the final instalment payable in year 2035 to 2048 (2019: year 2035 to
2048). As at 31 December 2020, loan receivables of HK$11,437,000 (2019:
HK$11,806,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the
principal and accrued interest after 60 months after drawndown date.

The current portion of HK$4,875,000 (2019: HK$4,919,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year is classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$19,761,000 (2019: HK$26,890,000) is classified as
non-current assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group granted an
unsecured loan of HK$155,282,000 (the “Unsecured Loan”) to two
beneficial owners of purchaser of Lucky Way (as defined in note 37) as the
joint borrowers of the Unsecured Loan (the “Borrowers”). Details of the
Unsecured Loan granted are disclosed in note 38(a). As at 31 December
2020, following the settlement of HK$31,170,000 and the addition in
interest receivable of HK$18,311,000, the gross carrying amount of the
Unsecured Loan is HK$142,423,000. The Borrowers did not repay the
Unsecured Loan based on the repayment schedule. HK$45,000,000 of the
Unsecured Loan has already been past due since 4 May 2020 and
remaining Unsecured Loan has also been past due subsequent to the
reporting date. In view of this, the Directors considered that this
Unsecured Loan has already been credit-impaired and thus impairment
loss of HK$142,423,000 is recognised to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

No loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan stated above) are past
due as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The loan receivables are secured
by second mortgage on the properties located in Hong Kong (other than
the Unsecured Loan stated above). The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There
has not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loans receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 39.2(b).

20. Eaﬁﬁﬂﬂu

MmIE FEU

é nﬁ
HE_T_TFR_ZF-NAF+-A=+—
EIJJ:EE%%EH&MIE « Ho b & WK IR K
71 & R (B AT 14 5 15 #p0 BT 7E39.2(0) ©

B :

—T-hhF—A—B IABKERAELSEE
4OOOOOOTI:Z/TJ\IE BE Iaamw BB
SEBRMNEFSE ZFEMEFFE  WARREH
HEt—FREE - ZEZRKER Eﬁ1faf;§E|B;W
HE-_Z-NFR=-ZZ-_ZF+-_A=+—HILEF
EER—F -

ﬁtﬁ%féﬂﬁz% R B A 8 120,686,000 (ZZE— 1
& 1 7 #27,809,0007T) Z 7K 18 ﬁﬁﬁmlﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁi
o RIERAERBHEE6EAREARERF
KRB ZE25 BE(ZZE—NF 2B E25E) 2FF
KR HERABZEBRNEGTE - BIRERS
216 360 B (=T — 1.5 : 216i360HH)tﬂ1§L
BR—HERER_E=RAFE_TNNE(=
—NE: —T=REE_TPNE)Lf - EA_Y_
TFE+-A=+—8 " EWEZFB 11,437,000
(ZZ— N5 : B¥11,806,0007T) AT/ & 7R A A 1R A
HHER#ERT60ME A LA S R B Al ERF R ©

TEHR R — F R Y e 2 B A B 5 74 #54,875,0007T (=
T —NF: BH4,9190000) DB ARBEE © #
8 75 #519,761,0007T (= F — /1 4F : 7 126,890,000
TN BERIERDEE -

HE-_Z_ZTHF+_A=+—HLEE X&EEHM
EX (m%iw.&sﬂ,ﬁza sHBANER
EEBERNBEREERAN(ERADE LB
155,282,0007T H) B 51 ([EE R E R ) ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
2 BRI EROF BRI ES8@FHE - R=F
—ZEF+=ZA=+—8" %&za%f/%ﬁ%31,170,0007t
K2 33 40 e Uk RI| 8076 518,311,000 T 18 K1 B 2K
) B T 48 {8 /& 78 15142,423,0007T ° 183 A IR R
BENRERESEERFE - B%45,000,0007T
WERKFERER-_Z-_SFAAMABESE - Mtk
THEEBAERNERREAHE A - BER
It EERAZERFEREEREERE " B
i BEE-_TFE+-_A=1+—BIEFE - RN
25 T 32 78 5142,423,0007T 2 B E B 18 ©

REZBZBEFR-_T-NF+t-_A=+—HAHESD
HAE U B 3R (B b R KR B RN o B URE AL
REBEBZYWE IR ERR (B Ll S KB ERN o
IMERALEEL  AEBERAIEEREIRYE -
%EWEm%ﬁZﬁﬁngilﬂﬁﬁéﬁ”
B HE_T-_TFEK-_T-—AF+=-A=1+—8H
migzm@&mﬁ\ﬁmwﬁwﬂ)
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21. Financial Assets at FVTPL

Included in financial assets at FVTPL are structured bank
deposits of HK$15,468,000 (2019: HK$99,255,000) placed
with a bank in the Mainland China and contain embedded
derivatives which returns are determined by reference to the
return of the underlying portfolio of listed shares invested by
the bank and the duration of deposits placed. The deposits
could be withdrawn at the Group’s discretion and are subject
to early termination option of the issuing bank at the price of
the principal outstanding plus the return of underlying portfolio
of listing shares up to the date of withdrawal/early termination.
Annual return rate varies from annual rate of 1.50% to 3.10%
(2019: 2.31% to 3.75%), depending on the duration of the
deposits placed.

Structured bank deposits of HK$47,540,000 (2019: nil) are
placed with a bank in the Mainland China with maturity of less
than three months and certain embedded derivative which
return are determined by reference of foreign exchange rate.
The deposits are subject to early termination option of the
issue bank or by mutual agreement. Annual coupon rate varies
from 1.10% to 4.00%, depending on the actual foreign
exchange rate.

The structured bank deposits are reclassified as financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows do not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
are stated at fair values based on valuation provided by the
issuing bank. The fair value measurements are categorised to
Level 2.

21.

RBRAFEFANEZZUBEE
BEAFEFABS 2 EEERREABE
8 17 17 U8 15,468,000t (B — ML &
75 #99,255,0007T) * 17 B A B A 3 — A
BIT  WEEHRARITETR  HO®RTY
REFTIREZHAB EMRMDASER KR
GRFHMET - 2EEAHBRIVER
MR HZETIRTEREHEZ RN 2
A4 IFBER 2 REEAR S S INHEEE LMK
MG ER 2 ERRATLLL o &9 0B HF
ZE AN F1.50% £310% (ZF — 1LF : 2.31%
E375%) T E - BT HFEHRFHRMET ©

4 18 14 4R 17 77 2008 #547,540,0007T (=& —
NFE)FERPR PR A — MR - I
BLR=@A TeEERTHmAXNITET
B HEFRDHLX2EINEEXREE - BEF
FRATHBEATIR TR AR & 1 1 sk 18 IR 1B IR AT
U - BFEEFEN F1.10% E4.00%
L BRIERINEERMIE o

HREBERITERZANREREL I
TEAEXNEAERREELSHE - B
HREBUERTEFREF DB R/EAFER
ANBRZUHEE -

RZEZZEFERZT-NF+HAH=+—H
BAVFEFABE BB EEREEITIR
TREZHERAFEEYE - AFEF=
DEERER °
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term
Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as

22. ZRRFVRITHER EHRT

HHERELEEYD
AREZRSRBIBBZBENT -

follows:

2020 2019
=t 5 —EFNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T IT BET T
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIBITER 64,082 43,879

Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=ZEAZ
maturity over three months RHRTTIE R 425,668 250,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 601,806 307,211
Total cash and bank balances R RRITHEBES 1,091,556 601,090

Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents earn
interest at floating rates based on the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates ranging from 1.01% to 1.09% (2019: 2.30% to
2.70%) per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$179,864,000 (2019: HK$94,975,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

ERFBIBTEFFIARREMASFEYR
B e RRITHE RN XL F B REREF S, o

R-B_FFR-_F-NF+t-A=+—
B REHABE=EAZEHRTE
RERFHRRE—F RIAEE AR
BEe®BRME  LRREE ZERFREF
F #1.01% £1.09% (ZZ — L F : 2.30% =
2.70%) R BX [ & F| = 7 7] 8. ©

AAAEERERBITEBKBERETN
7 R B A b %% ]8R 1T 4 0% #5179,864,000
TT(ZZ—hF : B1094,9750007T) 2 AR
(AR HERITES - ARKEIZIER
BERAZBZEE - RERERNM 2 INEE
BIEGIREE  SERNESERT A
SERELCHBEEEITINEER 2 RITHU
AR EE S JhEE o

E=RR B hHeFEYPZILAFESR
FEHEYESEARER -
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22. Restricted Bank Deposits/Short-Term 22, ZTRFBITHER EHRIT

Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Continued)

In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided
building management services. As at the reporting date, those
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group amounted to HK$71,128,000 (2019:

®BRERREFEYE)

REFBREF  ETHBARINERER
F=F(HBARMEREEFERREZ
ADUERXARAEZEEFTESE THRTE
F o RFEBH  ZF A B%71,128,000
TL(ZZF—NF : B ¥67,256,0007T) Z R 1T
EHRTDUEARARE=ZFHFE  LER
REBZERAMIEHRERAER o

Sl

HK$67,256,000).
23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B REMEMKIE

2020 2019
i G o} 3 —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Trade payables E S ENFE 11,219 17,358
Receipt in advance T8 Ug TR I8 13,068 13,620

Deposits received on disposal of HENBRAR 2 EWIES
subsidiaries (note 37) (Bt 3£37) 9,568 57,353
Rental deposits received BElHEeEe 157,870 161,645
Accruals on construction works EATIREFE 263,304 297,224

Other accrued expenses and other HMEAERR

payables Efh e 3RIB 164,660 161,954
619,689 709,154

Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days.
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables
was the following:

BHRNFIAZEEHN FI0EIX - R
BERREH  BHERNKAZKRERINE
N -

2020 2019

. Jemt 3 5 —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T IT BT T

0-30 days 0&E30K 1,335 1,519
31-90 days 31E90K 852 1,263
Over 90 days B #E90K 9,032 14,576
Total trade payables B EMNRIBATE 11,219 17,358
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24. Contract Liabilities

24. EHERE

2020 2019

S ¥l ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
T BT

Deposits received in advance associated ~ BETEE MR T 5 2 2

with pre-sale of properties for sale HEMEZERES
situated in:
— Hong Kong —&B 7,006 12,271
— the Mainland China — FB A 20,676 47,815
27,682 60,086

As at 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of contract liabilities
is HK$154,469,000.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deposits received in
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties are
expected to be completed and sold within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

RZE—NF—A—0 GHaE2FEAE
/575 #154,469,0007T °

AREBR-_Z-_TFR_"T—NEFE+-_A=
+— B HERERFEHRES —FER
BIMNHEZMEBKETE °
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24. Contract Liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

24. SHREE(E)
THRIFAEEREBSNEERER YK
HEWURERBEBHET BHEE
1Ry & o

Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HEEEMR HEBEMK
HEME TEME
ki 2l HE—TNEF
+ZHA=+—H il
IEFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in st AF I AN ABHEHZ
the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 46,510 112,085
Revenue to be recognised from REBITRABEGTER
unsatisfied performance obligations M 2= 51,541 126,085

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

FECHERAGNABRSE 2 REFER
LN

AEEEEFREEEH B WREOE
BZ10%EI0NIERTFRIE » A @ A&
Bl R T A EBREFREH
i AIRERFREEZETRNAEL
THERFXNRERE - ZFTER
EEBRDEZENRABRRENAE &
EEFPRBCERGENEZITHRAL -

Sl
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25. Lease Liabilities 25 HEEBE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T IT BT T
Lease liabilities payables ENEEEE
Within one year —F R 9,432 4,473
With a period of more than one year — & LA _E{B 48 18 Y 4 B A
but not more than
two years 7,981 6,798
17,413 11,271
Less: amount due for settlement B RA12@ AR HREES A
within 12 months shown MEBBECSHE
under current liabilities (9,432) (4,473)
Amount due for settlement after 12 FM2{E B 14 B H;5(E % A FER &
months shown under non-current BEZSH
liabilities 7,981 6,798
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to ERREEAE 2 MEFHIESEERNEX
lease liabilities is 3.93% (2019: 3.93%). £3.93% (ZZF— N : 3.93%) °
All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional EHEEEHNEEESETEE 2R

currencies of the relevant group entities. BEHE -
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26. &

2020 2019
—F-FE —NE
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BT I
Current liabilities mEAE

Bank loans — secured RITER—FEIF 180,605 213,005
Non-current liabilities FEmB AR

Bank loans — secured RITER— B EF 1,671,393 1,731,058

1,851,998 1,944,063
Carrying amount of bank loans repayable  RIEE R BEFTEHTETER

based on the scheduled repayment AHAfEE IR ZIRITERER

dates set out in the loan agreements: H1A

Within one year —FR 63,105 63,105

More than one year, but not exceeding —FUEEAEBBAMF

two years 1,671,393 59,665

More than two years, but not MEN EEBTBRAF

exceeding five years - 1,671,393
1,734,498 1,794,163
Carrying amount of bank loans that BIERERERBERGIR

contain a repayable on demand clause mEAE) BREES Tz?z’;

(shown under current liabilities) but FrETEEERAEEE

repayable based on the scheduled ZIRITEREREE

repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements:

Within one year —FR 117,500 149,900
Total bank loans RITERMEE 1,851,998 1,944,063
Carrying amount of bank loans matured B—F RN K'J B BIRIREK

within one year or those contain a EBEERZBITERZE

repayment on demand clause (shown HEGIRARESEE)

under current liabilities) (180,605) (213,005)
Amount shown under non-current FERBBEMYEE

liabilities 1,671,393 1,731,058

.mll”””””””“
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26. Borrowings (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank loans are secured by
certain investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group with a total carrying value of
approximately HK$13,843,373,000 (2019: HK$14,035,950,000) as
set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 39.2(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

RITER
—BEER

Bank loans
— HK$-denominated loans

26.

B E(E)
RZBEZTER T -NFF+_A=F—
B BITERDAAEERERELN B
13,843,373,0007L (= & — N, F: & &
14,035,950,0007T) 2 & TR E W % A K Y)
¥ BEKREBELAER  DRHREE
B 75 3R 2R BT 17 %218 o

BRAKEEEZHTAENIMBZ N
VAR A B 7% MR M RE39.2(c) ©

RBEEAHPAKEBE CERMEMNT

2020 2019
—EB-FE —ET-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT TT
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Inter-bank Inter-bank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR?”) (“HIBOR”)

+1.15% p.a. to
HIBOR+1.6% p.a.

+1.15% p.a. to
HIBOR+1.6% p.a.

HEHERITEE BBRITEE
HE(EERZE wE(HEERZE
HED+EFZE wED +F 5%

115% EFH 115% 2 H B
FZ#FE R CIE¥SA

+5F F %1.6%

+F ) E1.6%
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The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

27.

BIEH IR
B ERE 22T :

.,,.mHHH””w

2020 2019
—EB-TE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT I
As at 1 January n—A—H 120,859 117,532
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: RUATHEENR,(GTA)Z
IRERLIA -
— Profit or loss (note 13) —i18 % (P 5E13) (14,663) 3,441
— Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(a)) — HE M B2 F] (M 5£38() (229) —
— Asset revaluation reserve (note 14) — A EEGHFE P14 (22) (114)
As at 31 December W+=Z—A=+—H 105,945 120,859

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

and the movements during the current and prior years:

AT RREE TR KR 2 RIEL
MBEBEREEAMRANFERBEFE

Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax Fair value occupied
depreciation gain (note) properties Tax loss Total
miE AFEEKE EffEH i
HIEE () MERK BIEESE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H 114,070 15,296 6,754 (18,588) 117,532
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss N B,/GEN) (M 313)
(note 13) 4,254 — - (813) 3,44
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMmEERA
income (note 14) (P 5E14) _ _ (114) _ (114)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NE+-A=1+—H 118,324 15,206 6,640 (19,401) 120,859
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss BB (FEA) /B (B 13)
(note 13) (11,759) (15,296) 64) 12,456 (14,663)
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMEERA
income (note 14) (Bt E14) _ _ 22 _ 22)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 38(a)) & KB 2 A (M 5538() (229) - - - (229)
As at 31 December 2020 RZE=FF+=-A=1+—H 106,336 - 6,554 (6,945) 105,945
Note: The amount represented the taxable temporary difference arisen WieE: ZeBEREAEmRNESK REXE

from the fair value gain on properties upon the change of use from
the purpose of earning rentals or/and for capitalisation to sale in the
ordinary course of business which is then classified as properties

for sale.

EREARXGRETHEZR AWX2
RN ERGEMEEZ BRBEREEZR B
BRIIDBERFTEDE -
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 27. BEBIE(E)
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has aggregate amount of RZZEZZTF+_A=+—H KAKEE#H
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings AR B A b B B A B R 0 IR & A 2 AR B8 R
of the Mainland China subsidiaries of approximately 4 2= K8 48 58 %) 78 #5103,447,0007C (ZZF — 1
HK$103,447,000 (2019: HK$99,210,000) of which no deferred F : % #99,210,0007T) I £ fE 3R 4 1E 7 18
tax liabilities has been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities BfE - HRAEBEEEHZEGERB AR Z
have been recognised in respect of these differences because REBRAREERBZEWB AT KA
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of its BRI TS RKRE M ERZEER
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will BRELCHEBAEE Bt EEEZEHT
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. SRAI R AR EEE o
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
28. Share Capital 28. k&
2020 2019
ke ek 33 —T-NF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
& E BT Rin&E AT
Authorised: BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 FREEBBI0TL
each TE R 5,000,000,000 500,000  5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
As at 1 January and K—A—BK

31 December +ZA=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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29. Reserves 29. fitE
The Group x&
2020 2019
- ek 33 ZE—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT IT
Share premium (note (a)) f% 19 5 1B (Bt 5% (a)) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] 4 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Asset revaluation reserve BEEELRE - 110
Retained profits REBHEF 19,610,069 19,852,538
Exchange reserve bE 5 1 (17,762) (39,720)
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B 5% 185 (B 7% () 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEAREBEERR S
(note 15(a)) (M4 3E15(0)) 56,662 56,662
20,341,923 20,562,544
Notes: B 5

()] Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of share issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from
retained profits.

(©) The special reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 168
to 171 to the consolidated financial statements.

@ BREEEMERRESNREETROEE
ZER -

b EBEXAEEFEEEESKDEBROEEZ K
B 2EAeNEEAREER -

© ARBZFHIREREREAEE-NAALF
EARAREHITRAEE BB AR K
AEEZEHE -

LR E 2B F TR AR

BHIBERESE
168117@2&*%%5 FHK o

.,,unHHH”””W
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29. Reserves (Continued)

20. f#E(E)

The Company AT
Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% ERRHR
EHhiE EERE SRR RBEN  HIRE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BB BB
(note (a)) (note (o)) (note (c))
GER) (P (o)) GETY)
Asat 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—-A-H 690,811 295 1,376,612 578,905 56,662 2,703,285
Profit and other comprehensive income 4 A I B 2Lt 2 EUA
for the year - - 1,015 - 1,015
Final dividend paid ERZE-NERE
for 2018 (note 15(0) I S (M 150 - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend BEZT-NERH
for 2019 (note 15(a) T & (B 3H15(a) - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h%E
+-A=1-H 690,811 1,319,950 579,920 56,662 2,647,638
Profit and other comprehensive income  FAEF| R X2 EHA
for the year - - 1,234 - 1,234
Final dividend paid ERZE-NEXH
for 2019 (note 15(0) T8 5. (Ff 3£15(0)) - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend BE_S-TERY
for 2020 note 15(a) T & (M £ 15) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2020 RZET-ZE
+-A=1-H 690,811 1,263,288 581,154 56,662 2,592,210
Notes: B

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

R EEAERRERRERTRMHEE
ZE

EABEOFEBEESNEEERBERNE
BEZHHE °

BN B o Th 1532 1T AR ER Lucky Spark Limited
(—RMBRR)2HFEETEBRZAQNR
BETROEERMIERBARMEREFEE
EBEZEZE BEERE-—N/N\—FRaX
(BEE]) » EE THRTARR Z BNE
AR TR o A - WEAELTEBR A
ARIT AR R AT Rk RS sk EH
DK :

(1) TREHNINERTEINERHANTZ
BT X

@ EAEZAZREFRONEE
EETRAREMGER A5 -
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30. & iE
(@) HBAFKIE

2020 2019
—T-FHE —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETT BT T

Contracted but not provided for:

ERTAIHER B

— Acquisition of investment — B EYME
properties 17,641 17,641
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve FrEEARREHE R AR+ AR
months. By o
31. Operating Leasing Arrangements 3. KEHE=RH
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as HMEZARTBARKAEMNTLOT:

follows:

Within one year

In the second year
In the third year

In the fourth year
In the fifth year
After five years

—F R
EF
BE=F
HNF
ERF
AF%E

2020 2019
—E-FTE —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
389,294 452127
213,181 331,104
59,556 142,752
4,166 38,542

75 4,184

- 70

666,272 968,779
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31.

32.

Operating Leasing Arrangements
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2019: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$3,109,000 (2019:
HK$914,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$260,417,000 (2019:
HK$275,589,000) to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery of the
properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
of the mortgage with the relevant mortgage registration
authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee is not significant.

31.

32.

SEHERHE

AEBREBELLHELHEAERENE
(H3E17) - VAR —ERE (T —NF
—ENE) RERI AR AEBHES
BEAMAEATREZHPER - BOIEXK
MEEERBAABEBNEEESE - FRB W
L AR 2 S W A BB %3,109,0007T
(ZZ—NF : B #914,0007T) °

NAREE

R-ZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H AEEHRAR
ESEMEERMBZIEBERMEITRE
R 7B B 49260,417,0007T (Z B — L5 : 4
#275,589,0007T) ° ZEERGR YT
FERI ABEEZBECHBRZIZBE
SLEFEk VB8 M RIZIB B F R SR THRRR o
EERA UBERZAFELTERX -
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33. Statement of Financial Position of the

33. KAFZHB KRR

.,,,,,,HHHIHHHH

Company
2020 2019
it Jnk 3 —TNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
oz BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5 34 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B A R 2 FRIE 2,121,185 2176,105
2,666,185 2,721,105
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b & U 5108 386 368
Cash and cash equivalents ReELRESEFEY 249 225
635 593
Current liabilities FEBER
Amount due to a subsidiary JE I B AR 2 FUE 45,848 45,305
Accrued expenses and other payables JE=T £ F3 & £ FE (< A 368 327
Provision for income taxation FriS f B 15 63 97
46,279 45,729
Net current liabilities FRBEHE (45,644) (45,136)
Net assets BEE 2,620,541 2,675,969
EQUITY B
Share capital & A 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves ] 29 2,592,210 2,647,638
Total equity s 2,620,541 2,675,969
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34. PHBASIZHER
RZE_TEFR_FT—NF+-_A=+—H
ZTEMBATGEBHOT

34. Interests in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H HEME EERE HREFFE FATMBRGEENIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2019
nE
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEXBRAA EiE BRRAEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREBEZ 1T REER
3L
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLBRENEBERDR  BE BERRAEEIT NEBR
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RRERRES RERAEEE 1T REER
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR ABEBRES MEREEZEITL REER
LRk
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
SEERDA BiE B AR 78 #100,0007T MER?
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
SENMEEEFRAR BiE B R A8 #100,0007T REBFERRYE
Good Honest Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - = 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$10,000
HAEXBERAT BiE B AR B #10,0007 MER?



20204¢H;

EPBE A RAT 275

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.mll”””””””“

B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 {2 = F = FF+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital
Name operation ERTREAEE/
AT B EME EERE HREFEE
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of

Harvest Fortune Limited

mEERAT

Keep New Investment
Limited
REBREBERAA

Lead Properties Limited
EREXERAA

One Storage Management
Company Limited
ZERTAEEARDA

Onwell Properties Limited
ZEEXERAT

Power Huge Development
Limited
BEERERAT

Sharp Investment
Properties Limited
ERBENEFERAR

REBEARES
Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong

Bk

US$1 each
HEREBEEEITL
Lidk

Paid-up capital of HK$1
BEHRAERIT

Paid-up capital of
HK$1,000
B&RAE 1,000

Paid-up capital of HK$1
BRRKEEIT

Paid-up capital of HK$1
BHRAEEIT

Paid-up capital of HK$1
BHRAEEIT

Paid-up capital of HK$1
BHRAERIT
Paid-up capital of

HK$10,000
B &R A 10,0007

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

Percentage of interest

held by the Company Principal activities
FATFMBESERIL TEER

Directly Indirectly

EE &

- - 100% 100%  Investment holding
REER

- - 100% 100%  Property investment
NERE

- - 100% 100%  Property
development
NEER

- — 100% 100%  Property investment
NERE

- - 100% 100%  Mini-storage
a3y

- - 100% 100%  Property investment
NERE

- - 100% 100%  Property investment
MER?

- - 100% 100%  Property
development
NEER
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34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT &HE EREL/ EERE HMEXHE FATFMBESERIL TEER
Directly Indirectly
HE &
2019
NE
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
PREIGENES NG EiE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EBERRES 100,001,000k R EE REER
BEIT Rk
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
8B ERE) AR RBRRREE RERABEZ 1T REER
AT L@k
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BRERENEBERAR BiE BARAEE1,0007T MER?
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
EiE B&RAE%1,0007T NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
AL A EiE BRRAEEIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEARRA Bk E&RAE%100007T NERSE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
RRERRT Bk E&RAEH2007 NERE
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34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital
Name operation ERTRAEE
AT ER HMBL EERE HREXRFE
Year Glory Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1
TEARRA B BRERAEEIT
WEMILKESNEEE  Mainland China Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB25,000,000
RE R, &R
AR #25,000,0007C
EESHEHERR Mainland China Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB30,000,000
REAM HMER
AR #30,000,0007T
GETRERE Mainland China Registered capital of
BRAE" RMB23,000,000
FEAM HMER
AR #23,000,0007

Notes:
These subsidiaries were established in the Mainland China as
limited liability companies.

ok

The subsidiary was disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

B S A B

34. RMIBATIZHER(E)

Percentage of interest

held by the Company Principal activities
FATMBEGZERIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly

&

wl!!l”””””m

— 100% 100%  Property investment

- 51% 51%  Property
development

LS

— 100% 100%  Property
development

NEERE

100% 100%  Property
development

NEER

*

ZEMBRARNPEAMKLAEREER
Al e

= ZHBARERBE_T_TF+_A=+
—RALEFEAHLE -

SERBREHENERTHE2 TS
RERBAR R ERERERSYA
SEXEAAEAEALEN L ZENE
DB -

MEBARNFRBEZRITERNESES



LiEHRTEHAS

278

SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B0 B R B

For the year ended 31 December 2020 8{ 2 = F = FF+=-HA =+ —HI FEZ

35. Non-Controlling Interests 35. FEIEELRS

2020 2019

—ECEF —ZT-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR AT T

As at 1 January Hw—H—H 14,661 15,055
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EE) 465 (107)

Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of BREBINERZIEH

foreign operations Wz, (E18) 1,601 (287)

As at 31 December WR+ZA=+—H 16,727 14,661
The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100% SERASBHEA100% = 2 B A7 2 IE
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and TR WA A TERN  Ht W EEELE

therefore no further details are disclosed. — B
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36. Related Party Transactions
The following transactions with related parties were, in the
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of

business during the year:
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36.

Short-lease expense and management
fee expense in respect of office
premises situated in Guangzhou,
the Mainland China (note (a))

Short-lease expense for leasing
carparking spaces situated in
Guangzhou, the Mainland China
(note (b))

Rental income in respect of an office
premise (note (c))

Management fee in respect of properties

for sale (note (d))

SR EAMEMNZ P RE
MEZEHRERS M
12 B (M @)

MEMRHRBEAMEMNZ
FREUZEHEERX
(Bt 2% (o))

FR—ERAEYMEZ
2 WA EE ()
FEMEZERE (MO

FBALRS
EERA THRFREBMALET
RSN BRI BIER T

.mll”””””””“

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEET T BT T
459 532

27 29

100 600

= 734

Notes: B 7 -
(a) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with (a)

a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive

director of the Company have interests, for leasing a number of

premises situated in Guangzhou, the Mainland China for office

purpose.
(b) For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, a subsidiary of (b)

the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related
company, in which a close family member of the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company have interests, for leasing two
(2019: three) carparking spaces situated in Guangzhou, the

Mainland China.

KRR —RMBARE—RBARBEFER
—ERTEEHARACBEARETME
i MESHEUNHEAMEM 2%
EMAERRE -

BE-ZT_TFR-_T—NF+=ZA=+—
BIEFE AR —KWE AR R —REE
ARAI(ANRAREFZABRR—BWNITESH
BRER)FTUAERZE  UWHEAEMRFTERA
BNz A (=T —NF : = @) FELL -
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36. Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

©

For the year ended 31 December 2019, a subsidiary of the
Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a company, in
which the Chairman and her daughters have wholly-owned interest,
for leasing an office premise in Soundwill Plaza for the period of
three years commencing from 1 September 2018 and expiring on
31 August 2021 at monthly rental of HK$50,000. The agreement
was early terminated on 29 February 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, the total minimum lease payment
receivables from the related company in respect of the tenancy
agreement is approximately HK$100,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, subsidiaries of the
Company entered into property management agreements with a
related company, in which the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company have interests, for managing properties for sale
situated in the Mainland China. No such management fee in
respect of properties for sale during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Key management personnel compensation:

36. Eﬁ%)\:ta‘éa(..ﬁ)

i A -

(©

B

(&

RBE-ZE-NF+_A=+—HIFE
KRR =R BRRE—RRR (KRR ERE
RELZG2EHBED) A RHE - M
T N\FNA-BHE-ZT=—FNA=+
—HLA R E#50,000cHESHABH L —
ERAEME  BH=F - ZHBR_F—
TE_ATNRARERL -

—NFE+ZA=1+—8" BEAAG
HERZzRESERAENRBENES
#100,0007T ©

RBE-FT-NF+-_A=t—HLFE
ARAHBARE-—FAARBREER—F
HOTEERARR CMEARRIUYEER
& AREHERURTEALZFEY
X - RBE_ZT_ZFF+_A=1+—HLF
B MEGENEZERE -

EIEABFH

2020 2019

—E-FHF T —NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETFIT BT T

Basic salaries and other benefits EAXFHe kE ﬁt ?E all 41,585 34,792
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKE A — EREHE K

plans T &l 72 72

41,657 34,864
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37. Assets Classified as Held for Sale

As at 31 December 2020, the assets and liabilities related to
certain subsidiaries, namely Easy Loyal International Limited
(“Easy Loyal”), Well Huge Corporation Limited (“Well Huge”),
Fast Rich Enterprise Limited (“Fast Rich”) and Manage
International Limited (“Manage International”), whole-owned
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively named as “Disposal
Subsidiaries”), have been presented as held for sale following
the signing of sale and purchase agreements with certain
independent third parties to dispose of Disposal Subsidiaries
on 16 October 2020, 12 November 2020 and 19 November
2020 respectively with cash consideration of HK$16,268,000,
HK$13,333,000, HK$17,088,000 and HK$17,098,000
respectively. The Disposal Subsidiaries are investment holding
companies which in turn holds properties located in Hong
Kong. As at 31 December 2020, total deposits of
HK$9,568,000 were received by the Group from the
purchasers and included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “trade and other payables”.

The disposal of Easy Loyal, Well Huge, Fast Rich and Manage
International were completed in January and February 2021
respectively.

37.

NHEBHEZEE
BHE— T TF+—_A-+—H RN _Z_TF
+A+R B E=FF+—A+t-HER=Z
TE+—ATNBAREETELE=F%E
B E AR S REE116,268,0007T « B
13,333,0007T * ##17,088,000 T I /5 #&
17,098,000 c HEIERBEE AR A= ([E
K1) HmEEEARAR ([ER]) BB
¥6RAA ([EE] ) RERBBRERAR] ([
BEEE]) (BASENEEMRBAR 5718
&IHERBAR) & E@ETHBARZ
BERBRAEZVAFE - HENBARAR
B AR BN BB N =T
F+ZA=1+—H AKEREFKIIZSE
RE5 19,568,000 ' WHT A ARG BT AR LK
) [B 5 REMERTRIE] F o

B - 2522 - BEREEREE SR
T_—F—AR_AHEREK -
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37. Assets Classified as Held for Sale 37. PEABGEZEE(E)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2019, the assets and liabilities related to RZE-—NEF+_A=1+—H BAEEBZ
Lucky Way Holdings Investment Limited (“Lucky Way”), a 2EMBARIBAEBKEESRAR (R
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, have been presented SANZEERABRERE—ZBIE=FH
as held for sale following the signing of a sale and purchase R EEMBEZIAFERES - U=
agreement with an independent third party to dispose of Lucky T-NFELtA+NBHERE HEKE
Way on 19 July 2018 with a cash consideration of 575 #467,635,0007T © EA & —HIZEE
HK$467,635,000. Lucky Way is an investment holding AR #E—EHRBARMNEIBERET
company and holds the entire issued share capital of a A MZMBRARFEE —BUREBEAK
subsidiary which in turn holds a property comprises a work Y pE— ATk —EEE(REAE
site and a tenement building located in Hong Kong (collectively A&5E) - RZZE—NEF+=A=1+—8"
the “Lucky Way Group”). The Group received deposits of REEBE H WAL € B 157,358,000
HK$57,353,000 from the purchasers and included in “trade SATES R EMERMKIEIIER °
and other payables” line item as at 31 December 2019.
The disposal of Lucky Way Group was completed in February HERASEEN_ZE_TF_A%EK °
2020.
In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the BIBEB B ISR EERIFES - BEHEN
disposal subsidiaries have been classified as held for sale in BRAIZEEENGEMBMRAKRDERS
the consolidated statement of financial position. The disposals FE BRLEYIEFTEXERRNEEM
do not constitute a discontinued operation as it does not @ AT TIERERIELEZET o
represent a major line of business or geographical area of
operation.
2020 2019
it ek 32 —FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
w5 BT T
Investment properties "EWE 63,787 420,000
Total assets classified as held for sale DREREEZHREE 63,787 420,000
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HEMBAT
On 19 July 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to (@)
dispose of the entire equity interest in Lucky Way with
details disclosed in note 37. The disposal of Lucky Way
Group was completed on 5 February 2020. The net

R=ZF—N\FEA+1HB $%@ﬂ
YHHELERACEIRE  FER

W?wﬁﬁoh%%lZﬁ%E%_
T-_TFE_ARHATK - BAEER

assets of Lucky Way Group at the date of disposal were HEABRZFEEMNT
as follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEEE
Investment properties (note a) WEWMEN i+a) 420,000
Deferred tax IR E IR (229)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries BRI RN B AR RIE (139,447)
280,324
Loan assignment Bz 139,447
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of ﬁ BrERASBCEERAY
Lucky Way Group 45,825
Gain on disposal of Lucky Way Group HERASE W 2,039
467,635
Total consideration wmRE
— satisfied by cash — UREZNM 312,353
— satisfied by repayment of loan (note b) — NEEERIN (W iEb) 155,282

467,635

wmwwwm
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38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

38. i EMEAE(4])

@  (Continued) @) (%)
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Lucky Way HERBEEBRESE ZHERA
Group: (note ¢) FEE: (Mite)
Total consideration received up to 31 December HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HL
2020 BB E 312,353
Consideration received in prior years BEFESWARE (57,353)
Direct expenses BEERX (25,825)
229,175
Notes: Wi
@) Investment properties which are classified as held for sale as @) HZE2019F12A31H - D EAFHAR
at 31 December 2019 have a historical cost of ENREMENRE LKA RBE
HK$139,002,000 and aggregated fair value gain 139,002,0007T * #HEHEBHHAR
HK$280,998,000 up to the date of disposal. B Uk 75 & 75 #280,998,0007T ©
(o) The Group granted short-term loan facilities of ) AEEMEFRABRLEHERBES
HK$155,282,000 to the Borrowers to enable the completion #155,282,0007T ([ & 7K ) LA 25k
of the disposal of Lucky Way Group (and details thereof are ERAEEZFHEHI N BH 79’57
set out in the Announcement dated 5 February 2020). As at TTF-_ARAMNAE) - RZT=
31 December 2020, upon the settlement of HK$31,170,000 TEE+-_A=1+—HH KEEBK
and the addition in interest receivable of HK$18,311,000, the 31,170,0007T [ 3% fn & 4 F) B 75 #E
gross carrying amount of Unsecured Loan is 18,311,000 014 @ EE A E KA ERE
HK$142,423,000. While the Borrowers did not repay the 488 /B 1142,423,0007T ° MERA
Unsecured Loan based on the repayment schedule. TABEBEEFREEREEERRE
HK$45,000,000 of the Unsecured Loan has already been Ko B Di1%‘45 000,0007T &) & & 5K
past due since 4 May 2020 and remaining portion of the ER=ZZT_FTFAANBEE  ME
Unsecured Loan has also been past due subsequent to the HIFE R T INERRE B
reporting date. In view of this, the Directors considered that RiEmE - BENL  BEERBRZER
this Unsecured Loan have already credit-impaired and thus HEREHREERE Bt &=
impairment loss on the Unsecured Loan of HK$142,423,000 T FF+A=+—HILFE "
is recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 75 #6142,423,000 7T 2 R E S RE
December 2020. BIETUERAER °
© Approximately HK$45,825,000 has been accrued as direct © AEEREERAEEDAANBE

expenses in relation to the disposal of Lucky Way Group. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group paid approximately
HK$25,825,000 and the remaining direct expenses of
approximately HK$20,000,000 have been included under
“Trade and other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020.

45,825,000t EREHERY - R=ZF
—EFE+-A=+—H AKEEX
5 #) 7% #25,825,0007T * MR =T =
TE+-_A=+—BHTEERAIS
#£20,000,0007T B 5T A 45 & BT 75 5%
KA [ES R EHMERRIEIET °
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38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued) . HEMBAS(E)

o)

On 2 November 2020, the Group entered into an (b)
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Lucky Express
Creation Limited (“Lucky Express”), to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$12,090,000. Lucky Express is an investment holding
company and holds the entire issued share capital of a
subsidiary which in turn holds a property located in
Hong Kong. The disposal of Lucky Express was
completed on 23 December 2020. The net assets of
Lucky Express at the date of disposal were as follows:

RZZEZTF+—A=ZH AEEF]
S WpEE - AR E 7 #12,090,0007T
B—EEEWNBAREBRAEIERRA
Al(fEADHNE2BRERSLET —
BEUE=F o @mBA—EEREER
RNE - BE—ERBAREAYMED
WMBAR 2Z2HEEITRA - BEBEMN
HEERZZE_EF+=-A=+=H
SR c NIEERH - BRMNEEFE
R

HK$'000
ok e
Net assets disposed of LEZFEE
Investment property HEWHE 10,000
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries EXRIEEY NG (785)
9,215
Loan assignment B E 785
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of BRNERBIEEMX
Lucky Express 1,172
Gain on disposal of Lucky Express HERB WS 918
12,090
Total consideration HRE
— satisfied by cash — AR & 2t 12,090
HK$'000
PR T
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Lucky TERBREL Y
Express WEmAFHE
Consideration received BURE 12,090
Direct expenses BEEMRAX (1172

10,918

wmwwwm
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38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued) . HEMBAS(E)

(©

On 4 November 2020, the Group entered into an ()
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Total Asset
International Limited (“Total Assets”), to an independent

third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,226,000. Total Assets is an investment holding

company which in turn holds a property located in Hong

Kong. The disposal of Total Assets was completed on 28

December 2020. The net assets of Total Assets at the

date of disposal were as follows:

RZZE-TF+—AWAE  AEEF]
S ek 0 AR (BB #13,226,0007T
BH—EHEERNBAR MEBRBKERA
A(mEDMNESREEEZLET —
BEIE=F c MER—BEEREZER
DA BEUREBSNYE - HED
HEER=_ZE=_ZEF+=-_A=+/\H
T REERE - MEMNEEFE
UNNE

HK$’000
BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EWE 10,800
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FENRZN B AR RIE (662)
10,138
Loan assignment BN E 662
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of ERLERECEEMX
Total Assets 1,163
Gain on disposal of Total Assets HEmE 2 WE 1,263
13,226
Total consideration BRAE
— satisfied by cash — R e 13,226
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Total Assets T &M B RFELE 2
WERAFHE
Consideration received EURE 13 226
Direct expenses BEERX (1,163)

12,063
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38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued)

(@

On 29 October 2020, the Group entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Fast View Creation
Limited (“Fast View”), to an independent third party at an
aggregate consideration of HK$16,580,000. Fast View is
an investment holding company which in turn holds a
property located in Hong Kong. The disposal of Fast
View was completed on 23 December 2020. The net

38. HEKMBAT(E)
d RZZEZZTF+A=-F+NA x5H
RNk - DA B X (B 75 #516,580,000
T —HE2ENBRARASRIZEER
ARI[AZ NN EHREERIHET
—EBIYE=H c AE B EREE
JRAR] BHEMREBHNME - A5
NEEERN - E-_ZTF+-_A-+=
HERK - RHEERE  ASMEEF

wmwwwm

assets of Fast View at the date of disposal were as (ERUNNE
follows:
HK$’000
BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property HEWE 14,000
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FENRZN B AR KIE (1,236)
12,764
Loan assignment Bz 1,236
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Fast View BT EAEZHEERAX 1,431
Gain on disposal of Fast View HEAS W= 1,149
16,580
Total consideration BB
— satisfied by cash — UReZH 16,580
HK$'000
BT T
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Fast View — HERSHES 2
RERANFRE
Consideration received B E 16,580
Direct expenses BEEMAX (1,431)

15,149
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38. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Continued) 38. HEMEB AT (&)

©)

On 3 November 2020, the Group entered into an (e)
agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a
wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Huge Success

Creation Limited (“Huge Success”), to an independent

third party at an aggregate consideration of
HK$13,380,000. Huge Success is an investment holding

company which in turn holds a property located in Hong

Kong. The disposal of Huge Success was completed on

28 December 2020. The net assets of Huge Success at

the date of disposal were as follows:

RZE_ZTF+—HA=H ' AEEZ]
S WEE - AR (E 7 #513,380,0007T
B—EHEENBAREEAZERRA
AI(DEEDHEBRERSTLET —
BB E=F o EE A BT ETER
DAl BEUREBHYE - EHE
HEER-_ZE-_EF+-_A_-1+/\H
A c RIERE  HENEEFE
PUNNE

HK$’000
BT
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment property "EWE 9,800
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FENRZN B AR KIE (783)
9,017
Loan assignment BN E 783
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of BRELEEE  BEEMAX
Huge Success 1,171
Gain on disposal of Huge Success HEEE 2 s 2,409
13,380
Total consideration BRAE
— satisfied by cash — MR e 13,380
HK$'000
BT
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Huge HEGEESEL
Success RemAFHE
Consideration received R E 13,380
Direct expenses BEERX (1,171

12,209
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39. B TH

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are

categorised as follows:

=

B S A B

301 BHEMNESZHMBEERERB

AEEZMBEERBBENRE A
ERZEMEDELT

2020 2019
- ek o3 3 —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT P T
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at amortised R SR S E
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B EWRIE - T8 38,740 21,449
— Other receivables and — Hib e IBE KA &
deposits, net F R 36,466 16,076
— Loan receivables — EWRER 24,636 31,809
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHBITFR 64,082 43,879
— Short-term bank deposits — HRITFER 425,668 250,000
— Cash and cash equivalents - REeREEEY 601,806 307,211
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABR U
BE 63,008 99,255
1,254,406 769,679
Financial liabilities MBER
At amortised cost F2 1 34 K AR
— Trade payables — BZEMN3RE (11,219) (17,358)
— Accrued expenses and — B ERRAMENRIE
other payables (585,834) (620,823)
— Borrowings, secured — B8 BHF (1,851,998) (1,944,063)
(2,449,051) (2,582,244)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

RSB - NSRBI IR
ZHBEERBBE L REEEEAY

BEYEEAZR -

.,,,,,,HHHIHHHH
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39. I R(E)
30.2 iR EEBHERBEK

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk on its variable-rate interest bearing
borrowings, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group closely monitors its
loan portfolio and compares the interest rates
under loan agreements with existing banks against
new offers on borrowing rates from different banks
in the loan re-financing and negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

AEERBEEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR OMNER K
A R S A AR R R) o AT -
EETHARgZ 0T RHIE R RN
ERAKEMSHERAR

—RmE  ARERERREESIA
RT KRS - HRAKBATS SRR
RN &EKE - MAKREY ERA
ERTETAREMTAES P2
Ao REBI BB RBEITITERF
TAEERSZ - AKBMAX Z&
EXUHRABREINDAT -

(a) 5/

0O FIEEER
MEERERF TR ZRAFE
SR RERNT S REBM
HIREBZERARE - NEE
HEEFEMEE  BKRERK-
ERHRTEFARRES KIR
CFEEDMmE LIRS REHNE
B\ o AL E IR ELE SRR HIER
THERME SR HEMN XL -
AR SR B3R B 3 S A RGP ©
A AEETBYERHEER
e TEERBRENER
BREs BBERRITAILE
Rbpat < BE MK EARFRTT
REZHEBENRELL

AEEZHRESRENXRERT
BETREAAREEFBHNERT
BEAZEERERBKE -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a
()

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to variable-rate financial instruments at that
date. 25 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-rate
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposits and bank deposits at escrow account as
a result of the changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

As at 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase of 25 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
increase the Group’s loss after tax and decrease
the retained profits by approximately
HK$3,815,000 (2019: decrease the Group’s profit
after tax and decrease the retained profits by
approximately HK$3,992,000). There is no impact
on other components of consolidated equity in
response to the general increase in interest rates.
A decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate
would have had the equal but opposite effect on
the above financial instruments to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant. The sensitivity results are mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate loan receivables and
borrowings.

39 M?%IE("‘E
0.2 MEEGEBEEHERBE (&)

(a) mWEEE &)

() FIEm=EE)
AEEBEFECKBEERN
TRz BE BRBEBER
BRAEM -

Tl 3K 8 3 B 5T

BREDMNEBEERFNERRES
R EAZSHmMET  WER
RZBZFEBFEFHEITA -
251 £ B 2 1R IR B IR [E ¥ A

2 ARALBYZFE R
RE-T-NFT-A=+-H
.3 =Y :IE = 30:P
i -

ERERAR  AKERRAT
BRREFH M EERE ME
EFEEY  ZRHRITERR
RAEERPZBRITEREHZ
RenERBITEXR - FHit
WARBEEHEREDINTA -

RZZE=EF+=—H=+—8"
A A EEURIT T &
BT (A EHF 3 2 g T 125
& 2L 2 - A5 38 00 2 &= B bR A 12
&5 18 KRk D R BB s A 4 B

3,815,0007C (Z & —NF : H
AEE BRI & K RE
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(a
(i)

(i)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates and invests in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China. No foreign
currency risk has been identified for the financial
instruments as they were denominated in the
same currency as the functional currencies of the
group entities to which these transactions relate.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising
from changes in fair value of structure bank
deposits which carried at FVTPL.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL as the
Directors consider a reasonable possible change
to the fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL will
not have a significant effect to the Group’s profit or
loss.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020 and, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the amount of financial guarantees
provided by the Group is disclosed in note 32.

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality customer at
new customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.

39 M?%IE("‘E
39.2 MFEEMEEBHERBR(E)

(a)
(i)

(i)

(b)

45 B (48)

SN

SNER R IE RN EXEEHEH
MBETAEZAFERARES
MERZEAR AEBEXE
REBRFEAMEERIKE ©
MR ITAE s E.ENES
BROGZAEEERB 2R
AR - I RSN

G o
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B 1th (B 15 /2 B2
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables is
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model on
balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan)
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors as well as the fair value
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the
loan receivables. Based on assessment by the
Directors, the loss given default is low in view of
the fair value of the collaterals and the Directors
considers the 12-month ECL for loan receivables is
insignificant as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

39. BB IRGE)
39.2 BA B3 L IR I B B R B 3K ()

(b)

15 & /ol K& R et 1B 5F 1 (46)

EZEWATE (&)
FMEERBRETEESRLZ
BEPETEMNEERN G - %F
BREE Sy SIS SN
2 48 1 B 5P 40 8% & B Al 2 8K
BN WEBEFZFRER
AREFREZBRBEERIR -
AL B & R 1B 2 B8 HA /e WK
Be—HRmME BUAEERE
ERzREMEHEREKES
S REEAGREMBEFK
M e

W EZ
SEEREEERR EFE
Bk—XBK AEEEEE
BE RHETEPZMEUAR
PR 2 B3 - ZREEE
R NEERRIURETE K
ElE AR o o - AERER
BREABRBEEEEEAY
RE SR B BIETTRUE RS -

EZRBEEBEARENFHA
ZBAEEBRENEURER
MEREREHZEFRZA
FE - ETERE R (B ER A
BN 2T EER - RIBE
BTG EREERZ
ADEE BEHNEEXRBRE
MR _EFR T —NF+
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
Other receivables and deposits
Management of the Group performs individual
credit evaluations on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits over a certain amount
and collective assessment on the recoverability of
remaining other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and no history of default in
the past. No loss allowance provision for restricted
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents was recognised upon
application of HKFRS 9. The Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

39 M?%I'E‘(n‘ﬁ
02 HMEEBGEEEERBE(E)

(b)

15 & /ol K& R et 1B 5F 1 (46)
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

39. M?%IE("‘E

0.2 MEEGEBEEHERBE (&)

(b) 15E /@ EER B F 15 ()

AL B 2 A EE R AR B R

e AT BRI A B :

Other financial

rating Description Trade receivables assets/other items
HithMA BB EE Hith
MEBEETFR ESEWRIE I5H
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
default and does not have any  credit-impaired
past-due amounts
1K L B2 HFRzENRARRBE TR CRAREHEEEE 1REARBEEER
E{al %8 B 3018 — EEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12-months ECL
due dates but usually settle credit-impaired
after due date
BERzE BEHALELINBRAZEN CAREREEEE 1REABBEEER
BAFESHBREE — BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
increase in credit risk since credit-impaired credit-impaired
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources
R ER FRANAELESINBRIRE CRRAEREEFE EHAREHEEEBR
B EERBENIHERI. — BEERHE — EBEERE
R HEEE )Ju
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired
&8 ERBEREELRGEERE CAPREHEEEE CAHREHREEER
—BEERE — AEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
6! EEBRBNEBAR RSN HMERIE 88 518

BNE BASEEYEER

A E 2z B
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The tables below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject
to ECL assessment:

External
credit rating

SMEBIEESER MEBEEFR ERGHE

39. I R(E

Internal
credit rating

V22U FEGEEBERBE(E)

(b) 15E/ERR K EFE (&)

TRANAEEARZAYIE
EERFBIUBEEZREE

JeR\ B i

12-month or
lifetime ECL
128 A AR

Gross carrying amount

IRE 48 E

2019
=T JLF
Notes HK$'000
Kz BT T
Financial assets BRBHEREIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 W R IE 20 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 38,740 21,449
@A B 5£3 ERMEREEEE
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 5,072 5,834
@R ! EERE
Loan receivables JE U & 3R 20  N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 24,636 31,809
E R LigEN Y 1R2EREHEERSE
Loss Credit-impaired 142,423 —
1B EERE
Restricted bank deposits 5 IR #l R 1717 ¢ 22 A3-Al N/A 12-month ECL 57,112 33,833
TiE A 1218 AEMIEEER
B1-Baatl N/A 12-month ECL 6,970 10,046
38 A 12@AEMEERE
64,082 43,879
Short-term bank deposits 2 #8817 77 % 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL - 150,000
i 12EARBEEERE
A3-Al N/A 12-month ECL 425,668 100,000
T iE A 12@AESMEERE
425,668 250,000
Cash and cash equivalents R& RIREGEED 22 Aa3-Aat N/A 12-month ECL 92,581 134,893
~iEA 1R2EAESREERE
A3-Al N/A 12-month ECL 509,045 149,851
TiE A 128 AEMIEEER
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 180 22,467
T iE A 12@AEMEEREE
601,806 307,211
Other receivables and Hpth FEURIE R 7T & N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 36,466 16,076
deposits i@ A B 31 12EAEREEESE
Other items HiEE
Financial guarantee M ERAEN 32 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 260,417 275,589
contracts (Note 2) (P 3%2) i A & [\ B 12 A BEHEERRB
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39. I R(E)
302 i EGEEEERBE(E)

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEMRERGEFEGE)
(Continued)
Notes: B aE
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, 1. RETADEERRERE - K

the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since

SEERBHAEMFGEER
REV S ERIARESREE

initial recognition. o e
Pastdue Not past due Total
o a8 gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BRI
Other receivables and deposits Hib eIk E RET&
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZHE+-A=1+—H — 36,466 36,466
As at 31 December 2019 RZZTE-NF+=ZA=+—8H - 16,076 16,076
2. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying 2. MM BEREHME - BREL

amount represents the maximum amount the Group
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks,
and thus the Directors considered the loss given
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts
is insignificant.

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

BEEASEREAEAOER
ZEBRETHE BEAMELIRTF
ERRAEERRITEL 2
REE - ANEERBHBER
BRZENBEXRE M
BERAHZ12EARREE
BRI TEK -

3. WESEMIATE  AKHE
1B T 1R R AU H 0%
2 % - RERMES
EEERT B BREH - A%
B 5 B A 2 SR
2 A R T R
#E -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables
and loan receivables.

39. I R(E)

V22U FEGEEBERBE(E)

(b) EEEEERHEFFGE)

ZEBAZEEBRETNRE
BEEAREFFRRAZBEE
HRENRIEL G L HE
=R E R BB AL LS S A
BEARAEEERELFAE -

EERR BHRYFAEZE
RMEREEEBRRE AL
E N

TRIRHE 5 e WA M
WERERCBREEBES
%b o

ECL (credit-impaired)
EHNENEERR(FEERE)

Trade receivables

ESEKRE

Loan receivables

B W & 3

2020 2019 2020 2019
okl T —n G Bebdebk s T F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT T
As at the beginning of the P8R 5 B 7))
reporting period - - 5,834 244
Changes due to financial AR—A—BHERZEH
instruments recognised as BT A& &) :
at 1 January:
— Impairment loss —-BERRBZAEEE
recognised - — 2,212 5,757*
— Impairment loss - BBEHESR
reversed - - (2,712) —
— Write-offs — HisH - - (262) (167)
New financial assets EENUBEE
originated 142,423* — - —
As at the end of the reporting 7 8 & #A %
period 142,423 — 5,072 5,834
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

*

Full impairment on the gross carrying amount was
recognised for respective credit-impaired trade
receivables and loan receivables.

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

39. I R(E)
30.2 B EBHERBER(E)
(b) EEEEERHEFFGE)
* EEAEY 2 EREDERA

FEAZERERERSEYHIE
R B -

WEERBREBARBABRE
B 75 IR 2 B B R A e @ 2 B
2 (PIEBACDETERIE
AWERF)  HEHRKFKIA
ERHBEAME (URFHLEE
REE) - AEERIMEEE 5 W
I - AREE S HEBKAR
HUERTTE) - PABRIBIHASRIE -
2 M H 2 B 5 18 KRR B &
RHRHEEE o

VA=A

MEBE SRR AN R R
BUTREPBAERB AT
Rk "EBREEEZ RN
IR - ERFE R R E A 5K
BREEUERRERSREE
BAZRSHECER AKH
ZEBRRERBEERHETELT
HEPBAEEHI AR - R
CRENBEXEVES -1F
FE BEREEENERER
T BEFEEMAKRERARS
KiGee e BREEDBYHE
£ o

(c)
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, for term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest time band in which the entity
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect.

39. I R(E)
302 MERAKREEEERKE (H)

(c) HEEZEMEEE)
TRFANAEB 2 HBRER
WE B RSO HFS
TRBEAENARFTRRESTE (B
ERAAOF =R (I AFEF
R)ERBEBRZMEFELZ
FENF) RA KB AL AN
ZRPAHGE - LERE 5
BEARRTEERBITEZ
BEREEGERZERERM
5 AR EERAES
HEBIREEN AN ESER
AERARAXNZRFHR
BEZRERL -

31 December 2020
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
—%-%5+t-RA=+-H
HYRAA-RAARERE

Weighted

average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cashflow  ondemand 5years

i BHARHR
RRE ReRkg —ERE —EUE
/) FREE ag REXE BREUA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BRI BETR BRI
Trade payables ZHRFR N/AT & R 11,219 11,219 11,219 -
Accrued expenses and other payables B BRRAMERFE N/ATEHR 427,964 427,964 427,964 -
Rental deposits received BEhEske N/ATEHR 157,870 157,870 54,467 103,403
Bank loans FIEH 1.83 1,851,998 1,914,099 212,236 1,701,863
Financial guarantee contracts HBEEREH N/AT & R - 260,417 260,417 -
Lease liabilities REAE 3.93 17,413 18,178 9,959 8,219
2,466,464 2,789,747 976,262 1,813,485
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

30. MBI R(E)
V2 HEEAMEEBERBE(E)

(c)

mEBE 2 E G (E)

31 December 2019

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
“E-AEtZA=T-R
HBERIT-ATRE SR E

Weighted

average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years

Mg BRRTER
THF=E Rene —EA —EN)E
% REAE 2% REXE  BRFHUA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT RETT BETT BETT
Trade payables BHENTE NATE A 17,358 17,358 17,358 -
Accrued expenses and other payables B ERREMERTE NATE A 459,178 459,178 459,178 -
Rental deposits received BEhfEsnse NATE A 161,645 161,645 44,743 116,902
Bank loans FIEH 2.60 1,944,063 2,080,750 260,182 1,820,568
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAH NATE - 275,589 275,589 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 393 11,271 11,832 5,025 6,807
2,593,515 3,006,352 1,062,075 1,944,277

.,,,,,,HHHIHHHH
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39. I R(E

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)

39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table set out below summarises the maturity
analysis of the bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause amounting to HK$117,500,000
(2019: HK$149,900,000 ) based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year or on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not consider that it is
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such terms will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in their loan agreements.

30.2 M EMEEBFERBK(E)

(c)

REELEE ()
TRE R SR EREEKRR
2 3R 17 8 58 #117,500,0007T
—ZF — 1L : % 1149,900,000
TDIRER RSB EEEE
REM Z B BB R DT - %25
SHEBRERANNETEZF
BEffg- Bt Eeman
EXEREHE RS R —F
A3k A B Sk B | B R 4 B 0 3 B
ZBF c ERAKE 2B AR
T BERABBRITTIKAREST
FEMBREERNFER - &
EHE 2EHEHERBERE
FipEATH 2 T E KB A
2 o

Maturity analysis — Bank loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

REFEEXDHELHZANERAT-HAREXRERRRZ

RITER
Total
contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flow on demand
BHRITE —E£Rg
fREE HeRBRH REXRE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BRI EETL ERTT
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+-RA=+—H 117,500 119,673 119,673
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ—NF
+ZA=+—H 149,900 153,305 153,305
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Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note
41. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

40. U EF R AMAZ BRI

TRFIAGEHERETHERCAEE
B BRRSLIFRSED M F4H2
FI2FETS REBDELEZAGBIBE
FABRRAKESRERERERADER
MERHTRZEGREZRERE -

.,,.MHHHUHMH

Amount
due to
shareholders Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
EftRERIE HEARE BE @z
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H - 5,983 1,562,788 1,568,771
Cash flow, net BeHERE (56,662) (2718) 324,074 264,694
Other non-cash changes: Hi R e 28
New leases entered MmEHE - 7,697 - 7,697
Finance costs recognised BHERBEKK - 309 57,201 57,510
Dividends declared BEERRE 56,662 - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-A=1t—H - 11,271 1,944,063 1,955,334
Cash flow, net ReRERE (56,662) (5,777) (128,482) (190,021)
Other non-cash changes: HEfFRe#2g:
New leases entered MEEE - 11,451 - 11,451
Finance costs recognised ERABERK - 468 36,417 36,885
Dividends declared BEERRE 56,662 - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZE+-A=+—H - 17,413 1,851,998 1,869,411
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41.

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and other bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.

M. EXEBER

AEEEAEE T R2ARAERAEH
HEKEZ N NERERERREMHRD
BRREMFOERENES -

B R BB TSR R E AR
B OHEERRY - ARBARRER
s - A A R R OR B 2 AR
R R A AR THR - RAEER
WmH A  HEREFELED -

AEBENBAEHES L XEERNFEE
BHRABERN)ERERN - FEHUGRAH
BRAKRALAEEEERHEERE ZEM
WIRE MIREFEY R EMIRITFRH
BRI A MBI RPN Z HE 2t B8R
AE - AKEEEATARYESLERN
AERZKE -

2020 2019

—E-FF —E—NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETR PEEET T

Borrowings BE 1,851,998 1,944,063

Lease liabilities HEAE 17,413 11,271

— Financial assets at FVTPL — BRAFEFTAER MK

BE (63,008) (99,255)
— Restricted bank deposits — ZPRHEITF R (64,082) 43,879
— Short-term bank deposits — RHIRITE K (425,668) (250,000)
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEY (601,806) (307,211)
Net debt FER 714,847 1,254,989
Total equity EimEE 20,386,981 20,605,536

Net debt to equity ratio FEREEHEREE 0.035:1 0.061:1
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on
19 May 2011 (the “2011 AGM”).

The principal terms of the 2011 Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

Purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of this scheme is to encourage the participants to
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Company and
at the same time allow the participants to enjoy the results of
the Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Eligible Participants of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme

Eligible participants of the 2011 Share Option Scheme includes
(i) any full time employee and director (any existing or proposed
executive or non-executive directors) of the Group or any
member of the Group and any part-time employee with weekly
working hours of 10 hours or above of the Group; (ii) any
advisor, consultants or agent to the Group; any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group; or any other person who,
at the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group; and (iii) any trustee of any trust
(whether family or discretionary) whose beneficiaries or objects
include any employee or business association of the Group.

Total number of securities issuable

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme provided that the share options lapsed will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

At the 2011 AGM, the said 10% limit of number of shares
available for issue was 25,091,413 shares.

42.

PR {5 B B B 2 0B S 3R BN
AARR-E——EHA+ABRTZE
RBFAR (2T ——FRIBFAR)) L
RO B (= — — FH AR
8-

—E-—FERREE T2 RAEIIN
T

—E-—FERESEZEN

ZA B EES B2 EEBREHAAAE
7 ARR2EENEFREZRN/ART
EE R Z R o

“E-—FERHETEZEERE N
&

T FEREFEZEERZ2EER
BOASEERAKEEEAKEQFZEM
2RESNEE(EMREXEZZRTH
FATES) URAKEEFASEITR0
PNERIA B2 RBUES () A K BT AR
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Total number of securities issuable (Continued)
Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
obtain a fresh approval from its shareholder in general meeting
to refresh the above mentioned 10% limit. In such event, the
total number of shares in respect of which share options may
be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
such approval provided that share options previously granted
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised share options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share option granted and yet to be
granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30%
(or such other higher percentages as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
14,335,413 representing approximately 5.06% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Maximum entitlement of each employee/
participant

Unless separately approved by the shareholders of the
Company at a general meeting with the particular Participant
(as defined in the 2011 Share Option Scheme) and his or her
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting, the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.
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42. Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the period which the
shares must be taken up under a share option and the
minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised are to be decided by the Directors
upon granting the relevant share options. Details of such
information (if any) relating to the outstanding share options are
set out below.

Amount payable to take up share options and time
to accept offer

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, an offer for the granting
of share options shall be accepted within 21 days from the
offer date and by way of payment of consideration of HK$1.00.

Exercise price

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price shall
be a price determined by the board of directors and shall be at
least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the offer date;

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
shares as quoted in the Stock Exchange for the 5 trading

days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the shares.
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42.

43.

Share-based Employee Compensation

(Continued)

Life of the share option scheme

The 2011 Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years from its
adoption date (i.e. 19 May 2011).

On 3 January 2013 (the “Grant Date”), 5,196,000 share options
(the “Share Options”) to subscribe for up to a total of 5,196,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company were
granted to certain eligible individuals, including executive
directors, under 2011 Share Option Scheme. The exercise
price of the Share Options is HK$15.76 per share and the
vesting schedule of the Share Options are as follows:

(@  50% of the options can be exercised at any time after first
anniversary of the Grant Date;

(b)  25% of the options can be exercised at any time after
second anniversary of the Grant Date; and

(0 The remaining 25% of the Options can be exercised at
any time after third anniversary of the Grant Date.

The fair value of the Share Options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2013 under 2011 Share Option Scheme
determined at the Grant Date using Trinomial Option Pricing
Model was HK$23,610,000.

All Share Options were lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Event After the End of the Reporting Period
On 16 October 2020, 12 November 2020 and 19 November
2020, the Group entered into agreements to dispose the entire
equity interest in Disposal Subsidiaries at total cash
consideration of HK$63,787,000. The Disposal Subsidiaries are
investment holding companies which in turn holds properties
comprises located in Hong Kong. The disposal of Easy Loyal,
Well Huge, Fast Rich and Manage International were
completed in January and February 2021 respectively.
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